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Chairman'’s Statement
FTERES

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors
(the “Directors”) of China New Energy Power Group
Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present the
financial results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred as the “Group”) for the financial
year ended 31 December 2012.

RESULTS

The audited consolidated profit for the year of the Group
attributable to owners of the Company was approximately
HK$32.66 million. Basic earnings per share based on the
weighted average number of 1,711,688,004 shares in
issue amounted to HK1.91 cents (2011: earnings per share
HK5.33 cents).

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group’s
revenue increased to approximately HK$0.25 million from
approximately HK$0.13 million in last year.

Net gain in the fair value on derivative financial
instruments through profit or loss reflected a profit of
approximately HK$77.70 million. As a result, the Group
recorded a profit of approximately HK$28.24 million in the
financial year ended 31 December 2012.

Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company
amounted to approximately HK$32.66 million (2011:
approximately HK$60.89 million).

BUSINESS REVIEW

After the disposal of the deteriorating timber business at
end of last year, property development and investment in
securities continue to become business operations of the
Group during the year under review.

Although the property development sector in the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC") experienced a challenging
year in 2012, the property development project of the
Group was still in a development stage and thus was not
materially affected by the restrictive measures implemented
by the PRC government.

While no revenue was generated from the Group’s
property development business, a few dividend income
was recorded by its investment in securities business.
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Chairman'’s Statement
FTERES

FUTURE PLANS AND PROSPECTS

Regarding the property development business, it is
expected that the PRC government will continue its
proactive fiscal policy and prudent monetary policy in the
coming year to curb inflation and rein the home prices,
and that local governments will be in line with the central
government to maintain tightening measures throughout
2013. Following the launch of the “National Five
Measures” in early March 2013, it is commonly believed
that stringent controls of the property market in the PRC
will continue in the coming years.

The Group will keep on monitoring and analysing
government policies and market trend in an active manner,
in order to align its development and marketing strategies to
grasp opportunities for its property development business.

Moreover, the Group will continue to dedicate its efforts to
the development of its existing businesses and other high
potential projects with a view to providing steady returns
as well as fruitful growth for its shareholders. In view of
the Group’s current cash position, the Group continued
to maintain a sound financial position and has sufficient
resources to finance its operations and any potential projects.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, my sincere thank to our loyal
shareholders, suppliers and business associates for their
continuous support to the Group. | would also extend
my gratitude and appreciation to our management and
all staff for their invaluable effort and contributions
throughout the year.

On behalf of the Board,

Ip Cheng Kuong
Chairman
Hong Kong, 27 March 2013
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIEE MDA

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group’s
revenue was approximately HK$0.25 million (2011:
approximately HK$76.68 million including the revenue
from the Group’s discontinued timber business operation).
The significant shortfall was attributable to the disposal by
the Group of its timber business at the end of 2011 and
no revenue was generated from its property development
project in the reporting year.

Segmental Results

During the reporting year, property development and
investments in securities remained the continuing business
operations of the Group, while the timber business
had already been discontinued and disposed of on 29
December 2011.

Property development business

No revenue was generated from the operation of
property development for the reporting year (2011: nil)
and its segmental result suffered a loss of approximately
HK$11.04 million (2011: a loss of approximately HK$7.93
million).

Investments in securities business

The revenue generated from the operation of investments
in securities for the reporting year was approximately
HK$0.25 million (2011: approximately HK$0.13 million)
and its segmental result suffered a loss of approximately
HK$17.80 million (2011: a loss of approximately HK$36.31
million).

Timber business

As the disposal of the Group’s entire interests in Wood Art
International Corporation and its subsidiaries (collectively,
the “Wood Art Group”) had been completed on 29
December 2011, no revenue was generated from such
business and segmental result was not accounted for
during the reporting year (2011: turnover of approximately
HK$76.56 million and segmental loss of approximately
HK$86.32 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIEE MDA

Cost of Sales

As the timber business had been discontinued in the
previous year and the property development project is
still under construction, no cost of sales was recorded
during the reporting year (2011: approximately HK$116.45
million).

Gross Profit/Loss

Owing to the discontinuance of the loss-making timber
business and the construction of the property development
project was still in progress, neither gross profit nor gross
loss was recorded during the reporting year (2011: gross
loss of approximately HK$39.77 million).

Other Income

The Group's other income for the reporting year decreased
to approximately HK$1.07 million from approximately
HK$6.94 million in year 2011. The main reason for such
decrease was that other income, such as government grant
and scrap sales relating to its timber business previously
were not received during the reporting year.

Other Gains and Losses

Other gains of the Group amounted to approximately
HK$80.76 million for the reporting year (2011: gains
of approximately HK$199.53 million). The gains mainly
consisted of the net gain on fair value change of derivative
financial instruments of approximately HK$77.70 million
and the gain on disposal of subsidiaries.

Selling and Distribution Costs

No selling and distribution costs were incurred by the
Group during the reporting year since the disposal of the
Wood Art Group (2011: approximately HK$6.51 million).

8 ANNUAL REPORT 2012  China New Energy Power Group Limited

SHER A
HMRAMEBEREFERIELEMYE
BREBEENERECEERER  MAREF
EUESBHERRN(ZTE——F 4
116,450,000/87C) °

ERN B

AR EEB RV ¥R - MER
BREEMNMENEERE  BMAREFEL
BEBSEFNKEB (ZE——F: £EY
39,770,000/ 7T) °

Hl A
RABEFE > AEEZHEMBBABR-T
— — % 496,940,0007% JT & = 471,070,000
BT BAOZTERABBERBAME
BB B R EEM R HE S LM A
EARREFEZILEIE -

Hih R EiE
RAREFE AEBZ2EMKTZAD
80,760,000 T (Z T — —F: K F L

199,530,000/ JT) > W == £ E B &
PTESERMIERNFEEH 2 FRFED
77,700,000/ 7T & HEKTB AR 2 W o

HERDHEBAE

ARE&EEWood ArtEE - REENA
WEFETBEEEHEERDHERA (ZF—
—%F : 496,510,000/ 7T) °



Management Discussion and Analysis
BIEE MDA

Administrative Expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses for the reporting
year decreased to approximately HK$34.87 million from
approximately HK$61.04 million in the year 2011. Such
decrease was mainly attributable to the disposal of the
loss-making timber business in the previous year.

Other Expenses
During the reporting year, no other expenses were incurred
by the Group (2011: approximately HK$47.2 million).

Finance Costs

The Group's finance costs for the reporting year decreased
to approximately HK$18.97 million from approximately
HK$42.77 million in 2011, representing a decrease of
approximately 55.65%. The finance costs consisted mainly
of the effective interests expenses on the convertible notes
of approximately HK$18.69 million (2011: approximately
HK$39.73 million). The significant decrease in the finance
costs was due to the conversion of convertible notes in
an aggregate principal amount of HK$306 million into
ordinary shares of the Company in April 2012, whereby
interests on these convertible notes were no longer
calculated after such conversion.

Profit/(Loss) for the Year and Earnings/(Losses) Per
Share

The Group's profit attributable to owners of the Company
for the reporting year was approximately HK$32.66 million
(2011: approximately HK$60.89 million). Such change was
mainly due to the change in net gain on fair value change
of the derivative financial instruments. Basic earnings
per share of the Group was approximately HK1.91 cents
per share for the year ended 31 December 2012 (2011:
approximately HK5.33 cents per share). Meanwhile, diluted
loss per share was approximately HK1.29 cents per share
for the reporting year (2011: loss of approximately HK6.36
cents per share).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIEE MDA

BUSINESS REVIEW

In the year 2012, the global economy was still complicated
and challenging. European countries, in particular the
euro-zone countries, were seriously affected by the
European debt crisis. Although the United States launched
its third round of quantitative easing measures in the
third quarter of 2012, the economic recovery remained
sluggish. Owing to such a situation, the PRC government
reduced the banks’ reserve requirement ratio twice as
well as lowered the benchmark interest rates for deposits
and loans twice during the year in order to stabilise its
domestic economy. According to the National Bureau of
Statistics of China, China’s gross domestic product (GDP)
growth in 2012 was 7.8%, which was the first time where
the growth rate has dropped to below 8% since the global
financial crisis.

During the reporting year, the PRC government maintained
its unwavering stance in regulating the local property
market and continued to deploy stringent regulatory
measures on purchase, price and credit. The property
development industry in the PRC therefore faced an
increased operating pressure in the reporting year.

Although the property development sector in the PRC
experienced a challenging year in 2012, the property
development project of the Group, which was still in the
development stage, was not materially affected by the
restrictive measures implemented by the PRC government.

Property Development Business

As mentioned above, the property development project
was still in a construction stage and as such, no revenue
was recorded during the reporting year. The Group
effectively controlled the administrative expenses as well as
managed its financial position. During the reporting year,
the Group closely monitored the progress of its property
development project and the measures implemented by the
PRC Government on the property development markets.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIEE MDA

According to the existing development plan, the Group will
develop the site owned by a 60% owned PRC subsidiary
of the Company at Xi‘an City, the PRC (the “Site”) as an
area which consists of luxury residential buildings and
commercial buildings by several phases. Major construction
works for Phase 1 of the property development project
started in the second quarter of the reporting year, and as
a result, the Group did not record any revenue from the
property development business for the reporting year but
a loss of approximately HK$11.04 million was incurred
(2011: loss of approximately HK$7.93 million).

Investments in Securities Business

During the reporting year, a revenue of approximately
HK$0.25 million was recorded from the operation of
investments in securities (2011: approximately HK$0.13
million). This represented dividend income received from
held-for-trading securities during the reporting year. The
segmental loss of approximately HK$17.80 million was
mainly due to the loss on change in fair value of held-for-
trading investments.

Acquisition of Lithium Energy Group Ltd.

Reference is made to the announcements of the Company
dated 2 February 2011, 24 May 2011, 30 September
2011, 30 March 2012 and 1 May 2012 and the circulars
of the Company dated 25 May 2011 and 24 October
2011 in relation to, inter alia, the acquisition of the entire
issued share capital of and assignment of the shareholder’s
loan in Lithium Energy Group Ltd. (the “Acquisition”).
Under the conditional agreement dated 13 January 2011
entered into between Fulbond Investments Limited (the
“Purchaser”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
Hefu Limited (the “Vendor”), and Mr. Yeung Tsoi San, Mr.
Lau Yung and Mr. Fei Phillip (as the Vendor’'s guarantors) in
respect of the Acquisition (as supplemented and amended
by supplemental agreements made between the same
parties on 23 May 2011, 30 September 2011 and 30
March 2012) (collectively the “Acquisition Agreement”), if
the conditions precedent including, among other things,
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIEE MDA

the completion of the placing of shares and convertible
notes of the Company and obtaining the proceeds from
such placing of not less than HK$1 billion (“Conditions
Precedent”) are not fulfilled on or before 30 April
2012, the Acquisition Agreement and the transactions
contemplated thereunder shall terminate and be null
and void and of no further effect and no parties thereto
shall have any liability to any other party, save for any
antecedent breaches.

On 1 May 2012, the Company announced that, as at
30 April 2012, due to the market financing and other
reasons, certain Conditions Precedent to the completion
of the Acquisition had yet to be fulfilled (or waived by the
Purchaser) and accordingly, the Acquisition Agreement was
lapsed.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2012, the Group's bank balances
and cash was approximately HK$33.27 million (2011:
approximately HK$30.23 million), representing an increase
of 10.06%. Bank and other borrowings as at 31 December
2012 was approximately HK$17.19 million (2011:
approximately HK$1.52 million).

As at 31 December 2012, the current ratio (current assets/
current liabilities) was 8.01 times (2011: 1.00 times)
and the net current assets amounted to approximately
HK$603.74 million (2011:
approximately HK$2.68 million).

net current liabilities of
Major factors for such
a change were the early redemption and conversion of
previously issued convertible notes.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BIEE MDA

During the reporting year, net cash used in operating
activities was approximately HK$62.78 million (2011:
approximately HK$129.60 million). The net cash generated
from investing activities was approximately HK$12.44
million (2011: net cash used in investing activities was
approximately HK$4.63 million). The net cash generated
from financing activities was approximately HK$53.90
million (2011: approximately HK$18.35 million), which
mainly consisted of proceeds from issue of convertible
notes and other borrowings. As a result, the net increase
in cash and cash equivalents during the reporting year
was approximately HK$3.56 million (2011: net decrease of
approximately HK$115.87 million).

Early Redemption and Conversion of Previously
Issued Convertible Notes

On 2 April 2012, certain holders of previously issued
convertible notes in an aggregate principal amount of
HK$306,000,000 exercised their options to convert the
convertible notes into ordinary shares in the Company
at a conversion price of HK$0.1 per share. As a result
of the conversion of the convertible notes, the number
of issued shares of the Company was increased by
3,060,000,000 shares. Besides, all outstanding previously
issued convertible notes in the aggregate principle amount
of HK$90,000,000 (“QOutstanding Previous Convertible
Notes”) were early redeemed on 5 December 2012.
The consideration of HK$90,000,000 for such early
redemption was satisfied by part of the proceeds arising
from the placing of the convertible redeemable notes
in an aggregate principal amount of HK$120,000,000
as disclosed in the circular of the Company dated 18
September 2012. After the early redemption, there is no
Outstanding Previous Convertible Notes.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION AND
RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTION

With reference to the announcement of the Company
dated 29 November 2010 and the circular dated 20
December 2010, on 29 November 2010, Allywing
Investments Limited (“Allywing”), a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a management
agreement (the “Management Agreement”) with Harvest
Day Limited (“Harvest Day”), a company of which 60%
issued share capital is held by a sister of Mr. Zhang Xi,
the former joint chairman and executive director of the
Company, who resigned with effect from 21 May 2012.
Pursuant to the Management Agreement, Harvest Day
would provide management and consultancy services
to Allywing in connection with the development of the
Site. Allywing would pay to Harvest Day an inclusive
management fee of HK$50,000,000 by 3 installments.
The resolution approving the Management Agreement
and the annual caps of management fee payable
to Harvest Day was passed at the special general
meeting of the Company held on 6 January 2011.
The first installment of HK$23,000,000 was paid on
7 January 2011 according to terms and conditions of the
Management Agreement.

The Management Agreement constituted a continuing
connected transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A
of the rules governing the listing of securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) and disclosure regarding the
Management Agreement has been made in accordance with
the requirements under Chapter 14A to the Listing Rules.

During the reporting year, no project management fee was
paid or payable under the Management Agreement.

SHARE OPTION

A new share option scheme (the “New Scheme”) was
adopted on 25 May 2012, whereby the Board may, at its
absolute discretion, grant options to any eligible participants
including directors and employees of the Group (details of
which were set out in the circular of the Company dated 24
April 2012) to subscribe for shares in the Company.
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The total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the New
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company may not in aggregate exceed 762,429,300
shares, being 10.00% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at 25 May 2012, i.e. the date of adoption of
the New Scheme.

The subscription price per share on the exercise of options
granted under the New Scheme shall be no less than the
higher of (i) the nominal value of the shares; (ii) the closing
price of the shares on the Stock Exchange on the date on
which the options are granted (which must be a business
day); and (iii) the average closing price of the shares on
the Stock Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date on which the options are granted.

The purpose of the New Scheme is to attract, retain
and motivate talented participants to strive for future
development and expansion of the Group. The New
Scheme shall be an incentive to encourage the participants
to perform their best in achieving the goals of the Group
and allow the participants to enjoy the results of the
Company attained through their efforts and contributions.

Unless approved by shareholders in general meeting,
the total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted under the New Scheme
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) to
each grantee in any twelve-month period shall not exceed
1.00% of the total number of shares of the Company in
issue at the relevant time.
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An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms
of the New Scheme at any time during the period to be
notified by the Board to each grantee (provided that the
period within which an option must be exercised shall
not be more than ten years commencing on the date
upon which the relevant option is granted), subject to
any restrictions as may be imposed by the Board on the
exercise of an option during the period in which an option
may be exercised. A consideration of HK$1 will be payable
upon acceptance of the offer.

As a result of the Capital Reorganisation (as defined
hereafter) which became effective on 12 October 2012,
the total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the New
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company was 190,607,325 shares, which represented
10.00% of the issued share capital of the Company as at
the date of this report.

PLACING OF CONVERTIBLE NOTES

On 13 January 2011, the Company entered into a placing
agreement (the “2011 CN Placing Agreement”) with
Kingston Securities Limited (“Kingston”) (as supplemented
and amended by side letters made between the Company
and Kingston on 1 February 2011, 23 May 2011 and
30 September 2011), pursuant to which, Kingston
conditionally agreed to place, on a best effort basis,
convertible notes with a maximum aggregate principal
amount of HK$500 million (“2011 CN Placing”) which
carry a right to convert into shares of the Company at a
conversion price of HK$0.17 per share of the Company of
US$0.001 (subject to adjustment). The Group intended to
apply the net proceeds obtained from the 2011 CN Placing
for the future development of Lithium Energy Group Ltd.
and/or as funds for future investment opportunities of
the Group. The 2011 CN Placing Agreement lapsed on 31
March 2012.
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On 16 August 2012, the Company entered into a
placing agreement (as supplemented and amended by
the supplemental agreement dated 27 August 2012)
(the “CN Placing Agreement”) with Kingston as placing
agent, pursuant to which, Kingston has conditionally
agreed to place convertible notes in the principal amount
of HK$120,000,000 on a fully underwritten basis (the
“Placing”) which carry a right to convert into ordinary
shares of the Company at the conversion price of,
subject to adjustment, HK$0.12 per share after Capital
Reorganisation (as hereinafter defined) becoming effective.
The Group intended to apply the net proceeds obtained
from the Placing (i) for the redemption of the Outstanding
Previous Convertible Notes; (ii) to strengthen the cash
position of the Company; and (iii) to provide funding for
business operations and development of the Group. The
Placing was approved by the shareholders of the Company
on 11 October 2012. Both the completion of the Placing
and the issue of those convertible notes took place on 29
November 2012.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The special resolution approving the capital reorganisation
(the “Capital Reorganisation”) was passed at the special
general meeting of the Company held on 11 October 2012
(the “SGM"). The Capital Reorganisation involved the
following:

o share consolidation: every 4 then existing shares
of US$0.001 each in the then issued share capital
of the Company were consolidated into one
consolidated share of par value US$0.004,

o capital reduction: upon the share consolidation
becoming effective, the par value of each issued
consolidated share was reduced from US$0.004 to
US$0.001 by cancellation of US$0.003 of the paid-
up capital of each issued consolidated share; and
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o share premium reduction: the entire amount
standing to the credit of then share premium
account of the Company as at 30 June 2012 was
reduced and cancelled.

On 12 October 2012, the Capital Reorganisation became
effective and the number of the Company’s issued shares
became 1,906,073,250 shares. As a result of the Capital
Reorganisation and the Placing, the conversion price of
the Outstanding Previous Convertible Notes was adjusted
from HK$0.1 to HK$0.321 per share with effect from 11
October 2012, i.e. the date of passing the resolutions in
relation to, inter alia, the Capital Reorganisation and the
Placing, at the SGM.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group’'s gearing ratio
calculated on the basis of convertible notes, bank and
other borrowings of approximately HK$151.89 million
(2011: approximately HK$597.32 million) and total assets
of approximately HK$698.35 million (2011: approximately
HK$692.66 million), was 17.86% (2011: 46.30%).

MATERIAL CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
The Group is not aware of any material contingent
liabilities as at 31 December 2012.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS
At the end of the reporting year, the Group had not
pledged any assets (2011: Nil).
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EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

Subsequent to 31 December 2012, Fair Power Capital
Limited, a subsidiary company of the Company, entered
into an agreement with Ms. He Guomian (“Ms. He"), an
independent third party, to dispose all of its entire interests
in Max Plan Investments Limited (“Max Plan”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Max Plan Group”). Ms. He has agreed to
acquire the sale shares, which represents the entire issued
share capital of Max Plan and the shareholders’ loan at
a total cash consideration of US$850,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$6,630,000). The disposal was completed
on 26 March 2013. Upon the disposal of the Max Plan
Group, all the assets and liabilities of the Max Plan Group
would no longer be consolidated with effect from 26
March 2013.

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN EXCHANGE RATES
AND ANY RELATED HEDGES

There have been no significant changes in the Group’s
policy in terms of exchange rate exposure. The Group
operates mainly in Hong Kong and the PRC. Most of
the transactions are denominated in Hong Kong dollars
(“HKD"), Renminbi (“RMB") and United States dollars
("USD"). The exchange rate of USD and RMB against HKD
are relatively stable. Hence the Group neither anticipate
any significant exchange risk exposure nor have a foreign
currency hedging policy. However, the management
continuously monitors the Group's foreign exchange risk
exposure and will consider to hedge significant currency
risk exposure should the need arise.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As of 31 December 2012, the Group had approximately 60
full time management, administrative and operation staff
in the PRC and Hong Kong.
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The Group provides competitive remuneration packages
with attractive discretionary bonus to employees. The
Group regularly reviews its remuneration packages in light
of the overall development of the Group as well as the
market conditions. In addition, the Group has adopted the
New Scheme to provide incentives to eligible employees
(including Directors) with outstanding performance and
contribution to the Group.

CHANGE OF DIRECTORSHIP
The followings are changes of directorship in the Company
during the year:

- Mr. Fei Phillip, the vice chairman and an executive
director of the Company, resigned with effect from
30 April 2012.

- Mr. Zhang Xi, the joint chairman, an executive
director and a member of the remuneration
committee of the Company, resigned with effect
from 21 May 2012. Mr. Ip Cheng Kuong, the joint
chairman and executive director of the Company,
became the sole chairman of the Company with
effect from the same day.

- Mr. Wu Zhuo Tong was appointed as a non-executive
director of the Company with effect from 28 May
2012.

- Mr. Yeung Tsoi San, the chief executive officer and
an executive director of the Company, was removed
as chief executive officer and executive director
with effect from 4 July 2012 and 12 July 2012,
respectively.

- Mr. Lee Ming Tung, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company
with effect from 31 December 2012.
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Biographical Details of the Directors and Senior Executives

EEREAITBRABZER

Biographical details of the Directors and senior executives
are set out as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ip Cheng Kuong (“Mr. Ip”), aged 73, is the chairman
of the Company. Mr. Ip joined us in June 2011. Mr. Ip
graduated from PLA Military Engineering Institute in
Harbin and is a spationautics expert in Chinese aerospace
industry. Mr. Ip is the founder of x& Xl (b R) IRIRE
BB AF (an affiliate of China Energy Conservation and
Environment Protection Group, which is a state owned
enterprise in the PRC), and currently serves as its vice
chairman. He is concurrently the beneficial controlling
shareholder and the chairman of Liuhe EPES Group. Mr.
Ip is also the beneficial controlling shareholder and the
chairman of Global Zone International Limited, a company
which holds 3.90% equity interest in the Company.

Ms. Catherine Chen (“Ms. Chen”), aged 53, is the
managing director of the Group and a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group. Ms. Chen joined us in January
2007. She has extensive experience in project investment,
marketing research and the provision of consultancy
services in relation to businesses of foreign enterprises in
the PRC. She obtained a master of business administration
(marketing) degree from The University of Liverpool in
2001.

Mr. Yeung Kwok Yu (“Mr. Yeung”), aged 61, joined us
in July 2009, is a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Group. He is a member of the nomination committee of
the Company. Mr. Yeung had held management positions
in trading companies which were based in the PRC and
Hong Kong. He was also engaged as senior management
in various listed companies in Hong Kong. Mr. Yeung
has extensive experience in general trading, strategic
investment planning and business development. Mr. Yeung
is currently an executive director of CST Mining Group
Limited (“CST"”), of which shares are listed on the main
board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Yeung is the brother-in-
law of Mr. Chiu, an executive director of the Company.
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EEREAITBRABZER

Mr. Chiu Kong (“Mr. Chiu”), aged 55, joined us in July
2010, is a director of a subsidiary of the Group. Mr. Chiu
has over 15 years of experience in import and export
trading and business development. He was an executive
director of CST for the period from 6 June 2002 to 24
June 2010, of which shares are listed on the main board of
the Stock Exchange. Mr. Chiu is the brother-in-law of Mr.
Yeung Kwok Yu, an executive director of the Company.

Mr. Kwan Kam Hung, Jimmy (“Mr. Kwan"), aged
51, joined us in November 2009, is a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group. He has been engaged as a senior
manager with various listed companies in Hong Kong.
Mr. Kwan has over 15 years of experience in the fields of
finance and accounting and corporate management. Mr.
Kwan is currently an executive director of CST and was
also an executive director of G-Resources Group Limited
(“G-Resources”) until 30 December 2012, companies
whose shares are listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange.

Mr. Wah Wang Kei, Jackie (“Mr. Wah"), aged 46, joined
us in November 2009, is a director of certain subsidiaries
of the Group. Mr. Wah graduated from The University of
Hong Kong in 1990. He is a practising solicitor in Hong
Kong and was qualified as a solicitor in 1992. Up until
1997, Mr. Wah was a partner of a Hong Kong law firm.
Mr. Wah is currently an executive director of G-Resources
and was also an executive director of CST until 30
December 2012, companies whose shares are listed on the
main board of the Stock Exchange.
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EEREAITBRABZER

Mr. Chen Guang Lin (“Mr. Chen"), aged 41, joined us in
March 2011, is a director of a subsidiary of the Group. Mr.
Chen has extensive experience in operating and managing
enterprises in the PRC. In addition, Mr. Chen has
acquainted himself with matters such as administration,
management and tax issues in PRC enterprises. He is also
familiar with the operation, management and operating
environments in the PRC.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Wu Zhuo Tong (“Mr. Wu"”), aged 43, joined us
in May 2012. He graduated from Hainan University in
1991. He is currently a general manager of a company in
Hong Kong. Mr. Wu has over 20 years of experience in
administration and management.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Ma Yin Fan ("Ms. Ma"), aged 49, joined us in
August 2009, is the chairlady of the audit committee
and the remuneration committee of the Company. She
obtained a bachelor’s degree with honours in accountancy
at Middlesex University in the United Kingdom. She also
holds an MBA and Master in Professional Accounting
degree from Heriot-Watt University in the United Kingdom
and Hong Kong Polytechnic University, respectively. Ms.
Ma is a CPA (Practising) in Hong Kong and has been
working in the auditing, accounting and taxation for more
than 20 years. She is the principal of Messrs. Ma Yin Fan
& Company CPAs. Ms. Ma is a fellow member of each of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
Taxation Institute of Hong Kong, Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants, Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators. She is also an associate member of the
Institute of Chartered Accountant in the England and
Wales and a Certified Tax Advisor in Hong Kong. Ms. Ma is
currently an independent non-executive director of China
Strategic Holdings Limited (“China Strategic”), CST and
G-Resources, companies whose shares are listed on the
main board of the Stock Exchange.

REMEE (REL]D 4157 RN _F—
—F=ZAMARRE » BAEE B
RAZEF RELBAREZENEETEH
TENSELR BRIz RELER
BPECRZTTHR BEMREEEE

MEETHPEZEE  BERDEEE
IBIE o
FHITES

REFPRE (REE]D 435 R=Z—
“FRAMNARRR  FR—NANL—FE
E¥NEEAE BAE—HMEBRAINAK
B REERTERMERERSB20FLE -

BYKEHITES

BHEFZz+t (BLt]) 495 R_-Z
ZERFENAMAERRE  BRRAEXZ
ZECRFTHEZESER FESER
Middlesex University® 51 22 &8 & B - &2
i o 7N I B Heriot-Watt University
EEBBRIAEZERIBEEE LRI
SHELIEN - ERETABERES:
B BE—EABRERZ @ RBRBEER
BTF - HARABRSSTREL (B
AN CBEA c BREIDFABESET
MAg BAENBEE  REFFLARE
R AE BEERFTWELE REBRES
MERITBABRAEEREE - HMAR
BRERERTHTEHMAESEERER
AMBEGH - Bt REATREEER
AEI(THE])  PRIBEXERBBRERZE
MIERITEE  RERRZROEB
ERET o

}

FEFRERDHOEEARAT 2012 £ 23



Biographical Details of the Directors and Senior Executives

EEZNERITHRAE ZER

Mr. Leung Hoi Ying (“Mr. Leung”), aged 62,
us in August 2009,
committee and a member of the audit committee and the

joined
is the chairman of the nomination

remuneration committee of the Company. He graduated
from Guangdong Foreign Trade School in PRC. He has
over 30 years of experience in the international trading
and business development. Mr. Leung is currently an
independent non-executive director of China Strategic and
G-Resources, companies whose shares are listed on the
main board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Yu Pan (“Mr. Yu”), aged 58, joined us in August
2009,
remuneration committee and the nomination committee

is a member of the audit committee, the

of the Company. He has over 20 years of experience in
management positions of multinational trading companies
in Hong Kong and the Mainland China. Mr. Yu is currently
an independent non-executive director of CST, of which
shares are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Lee Ming Tung (“Mr. Lee"), aged 51,
December 2012. He holds a Bachelor of Science degree

joined us in

in accounting from Brigham Young University in U.S.A., a
Master of Accountancy degree from Virginia Polytechnic
Institute and State University of U.S.A.,
Financial Engineering degree from City University of

a Master of

Hong Kong and a Postgraduate Diploma in Corporate
Administration from Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Mr.
Lee is an associate member of The Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators,
The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong and a Certified Tax

a fellow member of

Adviser of Hong Kong. He has over 20 years' experience
in the field of accounting and finance. Mr. Lee has been
an executive director of CST since 28 September 2007,
of which shares are listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange. He is also the chief financial officer of CST.
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SENIOR EXECUTIVES

Mr. Tang Kam Shing (“Mr. Tang”), is the company
secretary and the group financial controller of the Group.
Mr. Tang joined the Group in May 2010. He graduated
with a bachelor (honour) degree in Accountancy and a
master degree in Corporate Governance from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University. Mr. Tang is an associate
member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and fellow member of The Association of
International Accountants. He is also an associate member
of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries, The
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators, and
The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. He is a Certified
Tax Adviser in Hong Kong. Mr. Tang has over 15 years of
experience in finance, accounting, auditing and taxation.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Tang had been the senior
finance executive of several listed group of companies and
multinational companies in Hong Kong.

Ms. Lai Ngai Ping (“Ms. Lai”), is the group finance
manager of the Group and joined the Group in June 2008.
She holds a bachelor of administration degree from the
University of Regina in Canada, majoring in finance and
accountancy. She is an associate member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants as well
as The Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. She is also a
Certified Tax Adviser in Hong Kong. Ms. Lai has over 10
years' experience in accounting, taxation and financial
management.
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CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board considers that good corporate governance
of the Company is crucial to safeguard the interests of
the shareholders of the Company and to enhance the
performance of the Group. The Board and management
of the Company are committed to enhancing corporate
governance standard, in compliance with all relevant
provisions as set out in the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (effective until 31 March 2012) and the Corporate
Governance Code (effective from 1 April 2012) (collectively,
the “Code”) as stated in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.
The Company has, throughout the year ended 31 December
2012, complied with the relevant provisions of the Code
("Code Provisions"), save for the deviations disclosed below
in this report.

This report summarises the Company’'s corporate
governance practices and structures that were in place
during the financial year.

1. THE BOARD

The Directors, individually and collectively, are
committed to act in good faith in the best interests
of the Company and its shareholders. As at the date
of this report, the Board comprised seven executive
Directors, one non-executive Director and four
independent non-executive Directors. The profile of
all Directors are set out on pages 21 to 24, where
relationship among members of the Board (including
financial, business, family or other material or
relevant relationship(s), if any) are also disclosed.

The Board is responsible for performing the
corporate governance functions of the Company in
accordance with the Code, including determining
the Group's corporate governance policies, and
reviewing and monitoring the corporate governance
practices of the Group.
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The Board is responsible for the management of the
business and affairs of the Group with the objective
of enhancing shareholders value and presenting a
balanced, clear and understandable assessment of
the Company’s performance, position and prospects
in the annual and interim reports, and of other
price-sensitive announcements and accounting
policies, and reports to regulators any information
required to be disclosed pursuant to the relevant
statutory requirements.

The Board has fiduciary duty and statutory
responsibility towards the Company and the
Group. Other responsibilities include, formulation
of the Group’s overall strategy and policies, setting
corporate and management targets and key
operational initiatives, monitoring and control of
operational and financial performance, and approval
of budgets and major capital expenditures, major
investments, material acquisitions and disposals
of assets, corporate or financial restructuring,
significant operational, financial and management
matters.

The Board delegates day-to-day management of the
business of the Group to the management of the
relevant principal subsidiaries and certain specific
responsibilities to audit committee, remuneration
committee and nomination committee. The
composition and functions of each committee are
described below. These committees have specific
functions and authority to examine issues and
report to the Board with their recommendations
(if appropriate). The final decision rests with the
Board, unless otherwise provided for in the terms of
reference of the relevant committee.
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The Company has arranged appropriate liability
insurance cover for liabilities in respect of legal
actions against Directors arising out of corporate
activities. The insurance coverage is reviewed
regularly.

The company secretary of the Company (“Company
Secretary”) provides the Directors with updates on
developments regarding the Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory requirements. Any Director
may request the Company Secretary to arrange for
independent professional advice at the expense of
the Company to assist the Directors to effectively
discharge their duties to the Company.

The independent non-executive Directors of
the Company serve the important function of
ensuring and monitoring the basis for an effective
corporate governance framework. Each of the
independent non-executive Directors provides an
annual confirmation of his/her independence to
the Company. The Board considers that each of the
independent non-executive Directors is independent
in character and judgment and that they all meet
the specific independence guidelines as set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

All Directors are regularly updated on governance
and regulatory matters. There is an established
procedure for Directors to obtain independent advice
where necessary at the expense of the Company in
discharging of their duties to the Company.
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The Board meets at least four times each year to
review the overall strategy and to monitor the
operation as well as the financial performance of
the Group. Additional meetings may be convened
to approve any notifiable transaction and shares
issuance. Notice of at least fourteen days is served
for regular board meetings. Reasonable notice
would be given for all other special board meetings
which are not held regularly. The chairman of the
Board is primarily responsible for drawing up and
approving the agenda for each board meetings in
consultation with all Directors and ensure that all
Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at
board meetings. Agenda and accompanying board
papers in respect of board meetings are sent out in
full to all Directors within a reasonable time before
the date of every board meetings to allow them to
review these documents in advance. Minutes of all
board meetings, and meetings of the remuneration
committee, the nomination committee and the audit
committee are kept by the Company Secretary and
the Directors may inspect these minutes at any time
during office hours upon giving reasonable notice.
Minutes of all board meetings, and meetings of the
remuneration committee, the nomination committee
and the audit committee, have recorded in sufficient
detail the matters considered by the Board and the
board committees, including any concerns raised
by Directors or dissenting view expressed. Draft
and final versions of these minutes were sent to all
Directors for their comment and records respectively,
normally within 10 days after the relevant meeting
was held.
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During the year ended 31 December 2012, the
Board held meetings to deal with, inter alia, the
following matters regarding corporate governance:

- reviewed the corporate governance practices;

- reviewed and monitored the Company’s
policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements;

- reviewed and monitored the code of conduct
applicable to employees and Directors; and

- reviewed its compliance with the Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report.

INDUCTION AND CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Every newly appointed Director will be given a
comprehensive package of induction materials about the
duties, responsibilities and liabilities as well as statutory
and regulatory obligations of a director of a listing
company.

Monthly updates on the Group’s business, activities and
events will be provided to all members of the Board to
facilitate them in discharging their duties.

In order to ensure the Directors’ contribution to the Board
remains informed and relevant and to develop and refresh
knowledge and skills of the Directors, the Company
has regularly provided training information, encouraged
and funded suitable trainings/seminars for Directors to
participate in continuous professional developments. The
Company also continuously updates the Directors on
the latest developments regarding the Listing Rules and
applicable regulatory requirements to ensure compliance
and enhance their awareness of good corporate
governance practices.
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During the financial year ended 31 December 2012, a
record of the trainings attended/received by each of the

Directors, is set out in the table below:

BE-_ZT——F+-_A=1+—BHIFEX
BEEHFEBIEINBHEIETN TR

A

Reading journals/ Attending
written training courses/seminars/
materials/updates conferences
BIEHT HERRE
EEmEIME EBE
BEHER =]
Executive Directors HITES
lp Cheng Kuong EIEK v
Yeung Kwok Yu S E R v v
Catherine Chen PRE v v
Chiu Kong fisz Kl v/
Kwan Kam Hung, Jimmy 781895 4 v
Wah Wang Kei, Jackie N 4 v
Chen Guang Lin I 4 v
Non-executive Director FHITES
Wu Zhuo Tong REfY 4
Independent Non-executive Directors By I TESE
Ma Yin Fan ETECEEN 4 4
Leung Hoi Ying 2o E v v
Yu Pan T& v v
Lee Ming Tung TR 4 4
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The following is an attendance record of each Director at

the Board meetings held during the year:

TREJFANEBREZLRMARZIES

GEE A

Number of
meetings
attended

Name of Board member EEgEanA HESBEZXIE

Executive Directors BITES

Mr. Ip Cheng Kuong HEXEE 14/22

Mr. Yeung Kwok Yu 15 B3 5t A 22/22

Ms. Catherine Chen PRE 2+ 22/22

Mr. Chiu Kong Fizki et 18/22

Mr. Kwan Kam Hung, Jimmy AiRIs 22/22

Mr. Wah Wang Kei, Jackie Bl /N Lt 21/22

Mr. Chen Guang Lin PR M A 19/22

Mr. Zhang Xi (resigned with effect from RESE (RZE—ZF 7/9
21 May 2012) AAZ+—HEE)

Mr. Fei Phillip (resigned with effect from EBREE (RZE—Z=F 3/7
30 April 2012) WA =+HEIT)

Mr. Yeung Tsoi San (removed with effect BEHEE (RZT—ZF 1/16*
from 12 July 2012) T AT - BWRRB%)

Non-executive Director FHITES

Mr. Wu Zhuo Tong (appointed with effect REFEE (RZE—ZF 6/12
from 28 May 2012) FAZ+N\BEZE)

Independent Non-executive Directors BIFHTES

Ms. Ma Yin Fan BES L 21/22

Mr. Leung Hoi Ying Ry B 22/22

Mr. Yu Pan FELE 21/22

Mr. Lee Ming Tung (appointed FHHBLEAE (RZT—ZF N/A
with effect from 31 December 2012) +ZA=+—RHEZT) 3 A

E The only one Board meeting attended by Mr. Yeung Tsoi * BEHEE ((HhLE]) EENM—EE
San (“Mr. Yeung”) was held for considering and deciding @ et ,

the removal of Mr. Yeung as chief executive officer and

executive Director of the Company.
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The following is an attendance record of each Director

TRENFABREFHREARAETLZ

at the general meetings of the Company held during the MR A& 28k
year:

Number of
meetings
attended

Name of Board member EEgEnS HESBZRE

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. Ip Cheng Kuong BiEALEAE 2/2

Mr. Yeung Kwok Yu BERm L E 2/2

Ms. Catherine Chen PRESZ L 172

Mr. Chiu Kong i 3 5 A 0

Mr. Kwan Kam Hung, Jimmy iRIR A 2/2

Mr. Wah Wang Kei, Jackie ERESE 2/2

Mr. Chen Guang Lin PR AR 52 A 0

Mr. Zhang Xi (resigned with effect from wigsE (N —ZF 0
21 May 2012) AAZ+—HEHE)

Mr. Fei Phillip (resigned with effect from EEREE (RZTE—ZF 0
30 April 2012) MA=+RHEHE)

Mr. Yeung Tsoi San (removed with effect BEHLEE (RZTE——F 0
from 12 July 2012) +t A+ B RBRES)

Non-executive Director FHITES

Mr. Wu Zhuo Tong (appointed REPKE (RZT—ZF 0
with effect from 28 May 2012) FAZ+N\BEZEE)

Independent Non-executive Directors BIFHITES

Ms. Ma Yin Fan BES Lt 2/2

Mr. Leung Hoi Ying R\ &L E 2/2

Mr. Yu Pan TAESEAE 2/2

Mr. Lee Ming Tung (appointed FHBEE (RZT—ZF N/A
with effect from 31 December 2012) +-A=1+—HBEZT) TiE A
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CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR

Under Code Provision A.2.1, the roles of the
chairman and chief executive officer should be
separated and should not be performed by the
same individual. After the removal of Mr. Yeung
Tsoi San from the office as chief executive officer
with effect from 4 July 2012, the Company did not
name any officer with the title of “Chief Executive
Officer”. Mr. Ip Cheng Kuong is the Chairman of the
Company (“Chairman”) and Ms. Catherine Chen is
the managing director of the Company (“Managing
Director”). Ms. Catherine Chen assumed the position
of “Chief Executive Officer” and was responsible for
managing and smoothing the business operations
of the Group while the Chairman was responsible
for leading the Board in the overall strategic
development of the Group.

The Chairman and the Managing Director are
separate individuals with segregated roles and have
no relationship with each other. The Board believes
that there is an effective segregation of duties
between the Chairman and the Managing Director.
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BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board currently comprises the following seven
executive Directors, one non-executive Director and
four independent non-executive Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. Ip Cheng Kuong (Chairman)

Mr. Yeung Kwok Yu

Ms. Catherine Chen (Managing Director)
Mr. Chiu Kong

Mr. Kwan Kam Hung, Jimmy

Mr. Wah Wang Kei, Jackie

Mr. Chen Guang Lin

Non-executive Director
Mr. Wu Zhuo Tong

Independent Non-executive Directors
Ms. Ma Yin Fan

Mr. Leung Hoi Ying

Mr. Yu Pan

Mr. Lee Ming Tung

All independent non-executive Directors are
expressly identified as such in all of the Company’s
corporate communications that disclose the names
of Directors.
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS
In accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company,
any new Director appointed by the Board, whether
to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the
existing Board, is subject to retirement and re-
election by shareholders at the next following
general meeting of the Company following his
appointment. At every annual general meeting of
the Company, one-third of the Directors for the time
being (or, if the number of Directors is not a multiple
of three, the number nearest to but not greater than
one-third) shall retire from office and being eligible
for re-election.

Under Code Provision A.4.1, non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject
to re-election. Prior to 30 March 2012, all of the
independent non-executive directors of the Company
("INEDs"” or individually “INED") were not appointed
for a specific term. However, all directors of the
Company are subject to retirement and rotation
once every three years in accordance with the Bye-
laws of the Company. As such, the Board considers
that sufficient measures have been taken to ensure
that the Company’s corporate governance practices
are comparable with those in the Code.

On 30 March 2012, letters of appointment were
entered into between the Company and each of
the INEDs. Pursuant to the terms of the letters of
appointment, all existing INEDs continue to be
INEDs of the Company for a period of two years
from 1 April 2012 and are subject to retirement and
rotation once every three years in accordance with
the Bye-laws of the Company.

Mr. Wu Zhuo Tong, a non-executive Director, entered
into a service contract with the Company on 28 May
2012 for a term of two years, subject to retirement
and rotation once every three years in accordance
with the Bye-laws of the Company.
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All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election by shareholders at annual general
meetings of the Company at least once every three
years. Details of Directors to be retired and being
eligible, offering themselves for re-election in the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
will be set out in the circular of the Company to be
dated 26 April 2013.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

Prior to 26 March 2012, the Company did not have
a nomination committee. The Board as a whole was
responsible for the procedure of the appointment of
its members and for nominating appropriate person
for election by shareholders at the general meeting,
either to fill casual vacancy or as an addition to the
existing Directors. During such period, the Board
considered and assessed the qualification, ability and
potential contribution of candidates for directorships
on the Board.

On 26 March 2012, a nomination committee was
established in accordance with the Code Provisions
A.5.1 to A.5.4. Details of the nomination committee
are set out in the section headed “BOARD
COMMITTEES".

According to the Bye-laws of the Company, any
Directors appointed by the Board should hold office
until the next following general meeting of the
Company, and shall then be eligible for re-election
at that meeting.

During the year, Mr. Wu Zhuo Tong and Mr. Lee
Ming Tung were nominated and appointed as non-
executive Director and INED on 28 May 2012 and 31
December 2012 respectively by the Board. Pursuant
to the Bye-laws of the Company, Mr. Lee Ming Tung
will retire as Director and, being eligible, will offer
himself for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company.
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6. BOARD COMMITTEES
As an integral part of good corporate governance,
the Board has established the following committees
which are all chaired by INEDs with defined terms of
reference.

6.1 Audit Committee

The Board considers that each audit
committee member has broad commercial
experience and there is a suitable mix of
expertise in business, accounting and financial
management in the audit committee. The
written terms of reference which describe the
authority and duties of the audit committee
were prepared and adopted in 1998 with
reference to “A Guide for the Formation of
an Audit Committee” published by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and were subsequently amended on 29 March
2012 and include duties as set out in the
relevant Code Provisions. The audit committee
comprises three INEDs, namely, Ms. Ma Yin
Fan, Mr. Yu Pan and Mr. Leung Hoi Ying. Ms.
Ma Yin Fan was appointed as the chairlady of
the audit committee.

The audit committee oversees the financial
reporting process and internal control system
of the Company. The management of the
Company is responsible for the preparation
of the Group’s financial statements while the
external auditor is responsible for auditing the
Group's financial statements. Members of the
audit committee assist the Board in fulfilling
its responsibilities by providing an independent
review of the financial statements, supervising
the Company’s system of financial reporting
and internal control. The audit committee
presents a report to the Board on its findings
after each audit committee meeting.
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The audit committee also provides an
important link between the Board and the
Company’s auditor in matters coming within
the scope of its terms of reference and keeps
the independence and objectivity of the
auditor under review.

The following is an attendance record of
members of the audit committee at the audit
committee meetings held during the year:

Name of audit =
committee member REHA

ERZEE N ERESEER
ek EBEEETEEEEAR
RAENZHEM ZENEEE
8 WHER B 2 B
MR B -

Zresk

Number of
meetings
attended

HESERE

Ms. Ma Yin Fan (Chairlady) 553
Mr. Yu Pan T
Mr. Leung Hoi Ying 2

During the year ended 31 December 2012,
the members of the audit committee met
twice and discussed with the Board and
external auditor of the Company to review the
reporting of financial and other information to
shareholders, the systems of internal control,
financial control, risk management and the
effectiveness and objectivity of the audit
process. The audit committee reviewed the
terms of engagement, the independence and
objectivity of the external auditor and external
auditor's audit completion report during the
year.

2/2
2/2
1/2
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The audit committee reviewed and discussed
with the management and external auditor
the 2012 consolidated financial statements
included in this report. In this regard, the audit
committee held discussions with management
with regard to new or changes in accounting
policies that had been applied, and significant
judgments of the management which affected
the Group’s financial statements. The audit
committee received reports and met with the
external auditor to discuss the general scope
of their audit work, including the impact of
new or changes in accounting policies that
had been applied and their assessment of
the Group’s internal controls. Based on these
review and discussions, and the report of
the external auditor, the audit committee
recommended the Board to approve the
consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2012 and the
Independent Auditor’s Report.

During the year, the audit committee
also reviewed the unaudited condensed
consolidated financial statements for
the six months ended 30 June 2012 and
recommended the Board to approve the
unaudited condensed consolidated financial
statements.

The members of the audit committee
considered the appointment of external
auditor, their audit fees and recommended
the Board to seek shareholders’ approval for
the re-appointment of Messrs. Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu as the Group's external auditor for
2013.
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Nomination Committee

On 26 March 2012, the Company established
a nomination committee with terms consistent
with the Code Provisions A.5.1 to A.5.4. The
written terms of reference of the nomination
committee have included the duties as set
out in the relevant Code Provisions.The
nomination committee comprises two INEDs,
namely Mr. Leung Hoi Ying and Mr. Yu Pan
and one executive Director, namely Mr. Yeung
Kwok Yu. Mr. Leung Hoi Ying was appointed
as the chairman of the nomination committee.

The principal role and function of the
nomination committee includes:

= review the structure, size and
composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the board
on a regular basis at least annually;

- make recommendations to the board
regarding on any proposed changes to
the board to complement the issuer’s
corporate strategy;

- identify individuals suitably qualified to
become board members and select or
make recommendations to the board on
the selection of individuals nominated
for directorships;

- assess the independence of INEDs; and

- make recommendations to the board
on relevant matters relating to the
appointment or re-appointment of
directors and succession planning for
directors, in particular the Chairman and
the chief executive officer.
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The following is an attendance record of THREIIEREZEGKELR
members of the nomination committee at the FRBIOTZIREBEEGERZ
nomination committee meetings held during RO
the year:
Number of
meetings
Name of nomination REEES attended
committee member REHRE HESERE
Mr. Leung Hoi Ying (Chairman) RYELE () 2/2
Mr. Yu Pan FERE 2/2
Mr. Yeung Kwok Yu HEm A 2/2

During the year, the nomination committee FA - IBEEZESEARMAE
held two meetings and dealt with the o W FMEg®E FSAER
following matters at the said meetings or by RERAARE TSR :

way of written resolutions:

- determined the policy for the - BERBREZHBE
nomination of directors;

- discussed the appropriateness of the - WWmEREANEGEME
candidates and consulted the Board WRESZREEBIZ
about their proposals relating to the BEEMER 7 EETE
nomination of Directors. The criteria EEEFEER 175
for selection includes professional BEREBME R

qualification, industrial experience and
academic background;

- monitored the training and continuous - EEESEkafETHEE
professional development of Directors ZEIRFEERE
and senior management; R

- reviewed the structure, size and - BN EFEIRE A
composition of the Board; and AR - &
recommended to the Board the — MESEEZOIECD
appointments of Mr. Wu Zhuo Tong and REMEERTHBE
Mr. Lee Ming Tung as a non-executive ERIFPITEERAEY

director and an INED respectively on
the basis of their qualifications, skill
and experience which the nomination
committee considered would make a
positive contribution to the performance
of the Board.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company has established a remuneration
committee to deal with matters of
remuneration and compensation arrangement
of Directors and senior management. The
written terms of reference of the remuneration
committee have included the duties as set
out in the relevant Code Provisions. The
remuneration committee comprises three
INEDs, namely, Ms. Ma Yin Fan, Mr. Leung
Hoi Ying and Mr. Yu Pan. Ms. Ma Yin Fan
was appointed as the chairlady of the
remuneration committee.

The principal role and function of the
remuneration committee includes:

- give recommendations on the
establishment of the Company’s policy
and structure for all remuneration of
all Directors, senior management and
employees;

- review and determine the remuneration
packages and compensation
arrangements for loss of office of
all executive Directors and senior
management; and

- review of performance-based
remuneration policy of the Group.

The remuneration committee meets at least
once each year.

Details of Directors’ emoluments are set
out in note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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The Directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’
approval at general meeting. In determining
the emolument payable to Directors,
the remuneration committee takes into
consideration factors such as their duties,
responsibilities and contribution to the
Company, the prevailing market conditions,
time commitment and the desirability of
performance-based remuneration. No Director
is involved in determining his/her own
remuneration.

The remuneration package for each employee is
structured to attract, retain and motivate high
quality staff and at the same time to reflect the
importance of aligning awards with shareholder
interests. The remuneration package contains
a combination or modifications of some or all
of the three main components: basic salary,
performance bonus and share options.

The following is an attendance record of
members of the remuneration committee at

EXHAFTRRERRKRS
ERERTAIMEE - EETEE
NFEFZFHUME > FMEE

SEERZHERAE  BRERE
RARBIZBE - EEMASX

NEFTEERL - BITTHR - BT
NEMRRARESEZIEER
REFTHFHE - REFHES
BEORFEB S 2 HB -

&R B 2 FHMFBIRERIBTR
BE - RS B kmBEA
WEBARELET - IR
[k ¥ 8 T 2R MR R EE
ZEEE - HMFEAHA=X
HA (IRAIBEA FIgR) = — 8D
DEE AR  NERF S -
BRI 2 FEAL N BB AR A

TREIFHEEEKELF
RERBITZHFWNEE SR

the remuneration committee meetings held ZEREk
during the year:
Number of
meetings
Name of remuneration FMEES attended
committee member RE%SH HESBXHY
Ms. Ma Yin Fan (Chairlady) EMBLL (FEF) 5/5
Mr. Leung Hoi Ying R\ E & 5/5
Mr. Yu Pan AL 5/5
Mr. Zhang Xi REEE (RZZ—ZF 11

(resigned with effect from
21 May 2012)
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During the year, the remuneration committee
held five meetings and dealt with the
following matters at the said meetings or by
way of written resolutions:

reviewed performance and remuneration
packages of all Directors and senior
management of the Company;

- reviewed and approved the discretionary
bonus to the Directors and senior
management of the Company for 2012,

- reviewed and approved the terms of
executive Director’s service contract; and

- reviewed and approved the remuneration
of Mr. Wu Zhuo Tong and Mr. Lee Ming
Tung.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has overall responsibility for the system
of internal controls of the Company and for
reviewing its effectiveness on an annual basis under
Code Provision C.2.1. The Group’s internal control
systems comprise an established organizational
structure and comprehensive policies and standards.
Procedures have been designed to safeguard assets
against unauthorized use or disposition, to maintain
proper accounting records, for the reliability of
financial information used within the business or
for publication, and to ensure compliance with
applicable laws and regulations. The purpose of the
Group’s internal control is to provide reasonable,
but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss and manage rather than
eliminate risks of failure in operational systems and
achievement of the Group’s objectives.
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The Group’'s internal control system includes
following major components:

(1)  Review an organizational and governance
structure with defined responsibility and
delegated authority;

(2)  Set up stringent policies and procedures for
the appraisal, review and approval of major
capital and recurrent expenditures; and

(3) Review report of operations results against
budgets to the Board regularly.

The Board, through the audit committee, has
reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control
system of the Group.

PERFORMANCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’ DUTIES

The Company has adopted the rules and procedures
on INEDs' work. The Company has four INEDs,
representing one-third of the total number of the
Directors as required under the Listing Rules. The
INEDs are professionals with extensive experience
in the fields of accounting, finance and business
management. Ms. Ma Yin Fan and Mr. Lee Ming
Tung have appropriate accounting and financial
experience. The INEDs do not hold other positions in
the Company.

During the reporting period, the INEDs had no
objections to the resolutions made by the Board.
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During the year, the INEDs earnestly and diligently
performed their duties in accordance with the
relevant laws and regulations and the Bye-laws of
the Company. The INEDs actively attended board
meetings during the reporting period, and reviewed
documents presented by the Company. They also
provided professional and constructive advice on the
Company’s major decisions.

The Company has received confirmation from each
of the INEDs about their independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers that the INEDs are completely independent
of the Company, its substantial shareholders and
its affiliates and comply fully with the requirements
concerning the INEDs under the Listing Rules.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR

It is the external auditor’s responsibility to form an
independent opinion, based on their audit, on the
consolidated financial statements and to report their
opinion solely to the shareholders of the Company,
as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act and for no other purpose.
They do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the content of the
auditor’s report.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, Messrs.
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu was appointed as the
external auditor of the Group and provided audit
services and non-audit services to the Group. The
Board has accepted the recommendation from the
audit committee on re-appointing Messrs. Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu as the external auditor of the
Group.
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During the year, the remuneration paid and payable

FABRRHERSE N RENARRBINEZ

to the Company’s external auditor for the provision — ZHEIRBEST
of services are as follows:
2012
—E——F
HK$'000
FExT
Audit services FEZ RS 1,000
Non-audit services IEFAZ IR TS 360
1,360
DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 10. EECETEH

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility
for preparing the Group’s financial statements
in accordance with statutory requirements and
applicable accounting standards. The responsibilities
of the Directors are to prepare the financial accounts
for each financial period which gives a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and
of the results and cash flows for that period. The
Directors also acknowledge that the publication of
the financial statements should be distributed to the
shareholders of the Company in a timely manner.
In preparing the accounts for the year ended 31
December 2012, the Directors have selected suitable
accounting policies and applied them consistently;
adopted appropriate Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and Hong Kong Accounting Standards;
made adjustments and estimates that are prudent,
fair and reasonable and prepared accounts on
a going concern basis. The Directors are also
responsible for keeping proper accounting records
which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time
the financial position of the Company.
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MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by Directors on
terms no less exacting than the required standard
set out by the Stock Exchange in the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiries
to all Directors, all Directors have complied with
the required standards of dealings as set out in
the Model Code and the Company’s own code of
conduct during the review year.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

(i) Convening a special general meeting by
shareholders
Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company,
any one or more shareholder(s) holding at
the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company shall at all
times have the right, by written requisition
to the Board or the Company Secretary of
the Company by mail at Unit 2807, 28th
Floor, The Center, 99 Queen’s Road Central,
Central, Hong Kong, to require a special
general meeting to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition; and such meeting shall be
held within two (2) months after the deposit
of such requisition. If within twenty-one (21)
days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed
to convene such meeting, the requisitionists
themselves may do so in accordance with the
provisions of Section 74(3) of the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda.
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Putting forward proposals at general
meetings

Shareholders shall make a written requisition
to the Board or the Company Secretary of the
Company by mail at Unit 2807, 28th Floor,
The Center, 99 Queen’s Road Central, Central,
Hong Kong, specifying their shareholding
information, their contact details and the
proposals they intend to put forward at the
general meetings regarding any specified
transaction/business, together with supporting
documents.

Putting forward enquiries to the Board
Shareholders may send their enquiries and
concerns to the Board by addressing them
to the Company Secretary by mail at Unit
2807, 28th Floor, The Center, 99 Queen’s
Road Central, Central, Hong Kong. The
Company Secretary forwards communications
relating to matters within the Board's
direct responsibilities to the Board and
communications relating to ordinary business
matters to the managing director of the
Company.
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INVESTOR RELATIONSHIP AND COMMUNICATION
The Company is responsible for ensuring that
shareholders’ rights are protected. In order to
fulfill this responsibility, the Company endeavours
to maintain a high level of transparency in
communicating with shareholders and the
investment community at large. The Company is
committed to continue to maintain an open and
effective investor communication policy and to
update investors with the relevant information on
its business in a timely and accurate manner, subject
to the relevant regulatory requirements. In order to
ensure effective, clear and accurate communication
with investors, all corporate communications are
arranged and handled by the executive Directors
and designated senior executives according to
established practices and procedures of the
Company.

The Board uses annual general meetings and other
general meetings as the principal channel to meet
and communicate with the shareholders. Registered
shareholders are notified by post for these general
meetings, and the notice of meeting contains the
agenda and the proposed resolutions. Any registered
shareholder is entitled to attend the annual and
special general meetings, provided that their shares
have been recorded in the register of shareholders.
The Board also encourages shareholders to
participate in these general meetings to maintain an
on-going dialogue with the shareholders.

Extensive information about the Company’s activities
is provided in its interim and annual reports,
which are sent to shareholders, analysts and other
interested parties. The Company's news releases,
announcements and publications are circulated to all
major news media in a timely and accurate manner.
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15.

Separate resolutions will be proposed by the
Chairman in respect of each substantially separate
issue at the Company’s forthcoming annual general
meeting. The Chairman, and the chairperson of the
audit committee, the nomination committee and
remuneration committee will attend the forthcoming
annual general meeting to answer questions of
shareholders.

COMPANY SECRETARY
The Company Secretary is a full-time employee of
the Company and is reporting to the Board.

All Directors have access to the advice and services
of the Company Secretary to ensure the Board
procedures, and all applicable law, rules and
regulations, are followed.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2012, the
Company Secretary has complied with Rule 3.29 of
the Listing Rules by taking no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS OF THE
COMPANY

Amendments to the Bye-laws of the Company were
considered and approved on 11 October 2012.
The amendments were mainly for the purpose
of strengthening the procedure to effect the
appointment of an alternate director. An updated
version of the Bye-laws is available on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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The Directors present their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company and
the principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set
out in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on pages
66 and 67.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2012 (2011:
Nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements of the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

CONVERTIBLE NOTES, SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE
OPTIONS

Details of the movements in the Company’s convertible
notes, share capital and share options during the year
are set out in notes 25, 27 and 28 to the consolidated
financial statements, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY
The Company has no reserves available for distribution as
at 31 December 2012.

FFRHNEEHE T —F+ A=
+- B FEZ FRREERR AN H
EEO

TEEK

KRR R—RKREERRAR]  ETEEW
SN TEXBHNGE VB MR T
34 -

ES
AEBERFAR RGN
RAZmRER -

B
BEETEZNEBEE_T——F+-A=
+—HIFERNEARGARS (Z2——
F4E) o

M - BERRE

FRN - AEEVE BELXEZEEHF

BHNGZRE P BEHRRMEE 16 -

TREE - RARERE

FA - ARBAIMBRE - AN R EBRE
ZEBEBONBERNGEETBRRME
25 27K28 -

KA Z A H DIk G
% =——4+-A=+—8 AKFL
AR R o

: FEFRERDHOEEARAT 2012 £ 53



Directors' Report
EEEWES

DIRECTORS
The directors during the year and up to the date of this
report are:

Executive Directors
Mr. Ip Cheng Kuong (Chairman)
Mr. Yeung Kwok Yu
Ms. Catherine Chen (Managing Director)
Mr. Chiu Kong
Mr. Kwan Kam Hung, Jimmy
Mr. Wah Wang Kei, Jackie
Mr. Chen Guang Lin
Mr. Zhang Xi (resigned with effect from 21 May 2012)
Mr. Fei Phillip (resigned with effect from 30 April 2012)
Mr. Yeung Tsoi San (removed with effect from
12 July 2012)

Non-executive Director

Mr. Wu Zhuo Tong (appointed with effect from
28 May 2012, retired and re-appointed
with effect from 11 October 2012)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Ma Yin Fan

Mr. Leung Hoi Ying

Mr. Yu Pan

Mr. Lee Ming Tung (appointed with effect from
31 December 2012)

In accordance with the Bye-laws 87(2) of the Company,
Mr. Chiu Kong, Mr. Wah Wang Kei, Jackie and Mr. Yu Pan
will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting, and
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.

In accordance with the Bye-laws 86(2) of the Company,
Mr. Lee Ming Tung will retire at the forthcoming general
meeting, and being eligible, will offer himself for re-election.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS
There are no service contracts which are not determinable
by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation), in
respect of any director proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 December 2012, the interests and short positions of
the directors and chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations, as recorded in the
register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO"),
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code, were as follows:

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares
Ordinary shares of US$0.001 each of the Company

EEZRBEN
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MEEMS  WEITLARRTER —F
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59793
RZE——F+-_A=+—H "  ®HARQF
RIBEFESFRBEGKRY ((EHFLBAEED )
E3I2EMBFEZZRMATR - RIBREIZAE
SFRIZBHME ARG MR ARBIESE
MEBITRABEARRZEG - 18R
DRERARBREEBEBZESFPHEEZ
BRRARIT ¢

REOREERD 2HFR
AR BEREEO.001%K T2 LKk

Approximate
percentage of

Number of the issued
issued ordinary share capital of
Name of director Capacity shares held the Company
Ffse &7 EARATE LT
EEpR B4 EBEREE RAEBNBE D
(Note 1)
(B1E1)
Mr. Ip Cheng Kuong Interest of controlled 74,280,000 3.90%
corporation (Note 2)
BIEHREE MR EHEEFA
(Htat2)
Notes: Kat -

(1) The percentage was calculated based on the Company’s
issued share capital of 1,906,073,250 shares as at 31
December 2012.

(2) Mr. Ip Cheng Kuong has notified the Company that he is
interested in those shares of the Company held by Global
Zone International Limited, a company of which 51%
interests are owned by him.

(1) B RERARRR-_ZTE——F+=
A=+—HPB %77 741,906,073,250/%
Mmat&E o

(2) ZEEXTEERNZARREEAS1%E
%5 2 Global Zone International Limited#f
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Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors nor the
chief executive of the Company has any interests and short
positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations as at 31
December 2012.

SHARE OPTIONS
Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set
out in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company, its holding
companies, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries,
a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE
Save as disclosed in notes 14(e) and 31 to the consolidated
financial statements, no contracts of significance to
which the Company, its holding companies or any of its
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which
a director of the Company had a material interest, either
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION AND
RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTION

With reference to the announcement of the Company
dated 29 November 2010 and the circular dated 20
December 2010, on 29 November 2010, Allywing, a
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into
the Management Agreement with Harvest Day, a company
of which 60% issued share capital is held by a sister of
Mr. Zhang Xi, the former joint chairman and an executive
director of the Company, who resigned with effect from
21 May 2012. Pursuant to the Management Agreement,
Harvest Day would provide management and consultancy
services to Allywing in connection with the development
of the Site. Allywing would pay to Harvest Day an inclusive
management fee of HK$50,000,000 by 3 installments. The
resolution approving the Management Agreement and
the annual caps of management fee payable to Harvest
Day was passed at the special general meeting of the
Company held on 6 January 2011. The first installment of
HK$23,000,000 was paid on 7 January 2011 in accordance
with terms and conditions of the Management Agreement.
The Management Agreement constituted a continuing
connected transaction of the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules and disclosure regarding the
Management Agreement has been made in accordance with
the requirements under Chapter 14A to the Listing Rules.
During the reporting year, no project management fee was
paid or payable under the Management Agreement.

The Directors,
have reviewed and confirmed that the
continuing connected transaction of the Company was

including the independent non-executive
Directors,

entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual course of business
of the Company; (ii) either on normal commercial terms or,
if there are not sufficient comparable transactions to judge
whether they are on normal commercial terms, on terms
no less favourable to the Group than terms available to or
from (as appropriate) independent third parties; and (iii) in
accordance with the relevant agreement governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests
of the shareholders as a whole.
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The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transaction in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or
Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued an
unqualified letter containing the findings and conclusions
in respect of the continuing connected transaction as
disclosed above in accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the
Listing Rules.

A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange and the auditor has
reported their conclusion that the disclosed continuing
connected transaction:

(i) has been approved by the Board;

(i) is in accordance with the pricing policies of the
Group (if the transactions involve provision of goods
or services by the Group);

(iii)  has been entered into, in all material respects, in
accordance with the relevant agreement governing
the transaction; and

(iv)  has not exceeded the annual caps as previously
disclosed.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2012, the interests or short positions
of persons other than a director or chief executive of
the Company in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register maintained under
Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares
Ordinary shares of US$0.001 each of the Company
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Approximate

percentage

of the

Number of issued share

ordinary capital of

Name of shareholder Capacity shares held the Company

HARATE BT

IRERERE &4 FRFEERBE RASOEIL

(Note 1)

(BfiE1)

Ng Leung Ho Beneficial owner 150,000,000 7.87%
RR4F EmEE A

So Chi Ming Beneficial owner 250,000,000 13.12%
# A EmEE A

Notes: K1zt -

(1) The percentages were calculated based on the Company’s
issued share capital of 1,906,073,250 shares as at 31
December 2012.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been
notified of any other relevant interests or short positions
in the share capital of the Company as at 31 December
2012.
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APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company considers all the independent non-executive
Directors are independent.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The remuneration policy of the employees of the Group is
formulated on the basis of their merit, qualifications and
competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided, having
regard to their duties, responsibilities and contribution
to the Company, the prevailing market conditions, time
commitment and the desirability of performance-based
remuneration.

The Company and its subsidiaries have adopted share
option schemes as an incentive to directors and eligible
employees, details of the schemes are set out in note 28
to the consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the reporting year and the year 2011, purchases
from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for less
than 30% of the Group’s total purchases in the reporting
year and year 2011.

Owing to the nature of its revenue received in the reporting
year, the Group has no customers, whereas the aggregate
amount of turnover attributable to the Group’s five largest
customers represented 34.70% of the Group’s total
turnover (included in discontinued operations) in 2011.

At no time during the year did a director, an associate
of a director or a shareholder of the Company (which to
the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of
the Company’s share capital) has an interest in any of the
Group’s five largest suppliers or customers.
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EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of significant events occurring after the reporting
period are set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's Bye-laws or the applicable law of Bermuda
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a
pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company, nor any of its
subsidiaries had purchased, sold, or redeemed any of the
Company'’s listed securities.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the
Company has maintained the prescribed public float under
the Listing Rules during the year and up to the date of this
report.
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AUDITOR ZEED
A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual AAFTERERERERFAS FIE2—18
general meeting to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche SRR EIEEE e« EME S 2T A

Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company. NN EIRZENEN o

On behalf of the Board REREFS

Ip Cheng Kuong BEEXRKE

Chairman FE

Hong Kong, 27 March 2013 BB —EBE—=F=-A=-++H
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BN Az BN RS =

Deloitte.
=E)

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
CHINA NEW ENERGY POWER GROUP LIMITED
FEF RSN REERAF

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
China New Energy Power Group Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) set out on pages 66 to 175, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2012, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"”) and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit
and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the HKICPA. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’'s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BN Az BN RS =

OPINION BR

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a K172 A @ ZEHGAVBRREILET B
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at BEEENETH NI RE SE£EER
31 December 2012, and of its profit and cash flows for the —ZT——F+=-A=+—BWIBIRR
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial A REZEZBIFFEFE2%MEESRE -
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in  WEIZBEBAGEH 2 BEERKTZER
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong ® o

Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu EE e BERS T
Certified Public Accountants HEDIEN

Hong Kong BB

27 March 2013 —E-—=F=H=++tH
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
l\‘/T\ |:| %EJ’I& 2%

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE _FT——F1 _A=1—HIFE

2012 2011
—E-CfF —ET——F
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
Hiat THET FET
(Restated)
(E%)
Continuing operations HEREEL
Turnover LR 8 250 125
Other income E AU A 9 1,070 823
Other gains and losses Hilzs M g8 10 80,763 199,527
Administrative expenses THER (34,868) (38,141)
Other expenses = 14 - (23,000)
Finance costs & AR 11 (18,973) (39,849)
Profit before taxation R 5 A i 28,242 99,485
Taxation I8 12 - _
Profit for the year from =g 5 S
continuing operations AN E g A 28,242 99,485
Discontinued operation RIS EK
Loss for the year from ERIEREEBE 2
discontinued operation AREFEEE 13 - (68,829)
Profit for the year REE R T 14 28,242 30,656
Other comprehensive income Hip2mEkas
Exchange differences arising on WITE A 27| SR
translation to presentation currency EA4ZIEHZEE (368) 2,613
Total comprehensive income NEE2EIREEEZE
for the year 27,874 33,269
Profit (loss) for the year REEmF (BE)
attributable to: FE(EERS
Owners of the Company PIN/NE] ) 4SS
— from continuing operations — REFELEER 32,659 102,611
— from discontinued operation —REERIEREER - (41,725)
32,659 60,886
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
l@ﬁEJééEﬁHQ EE

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BFE_FT——F1T_A=1—HIFE

2012 2011
—B-CF —E——%F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Hiat THET FET
(Restated)
(&)
Non-controlling interests FEFE R E S
— from continuing operations — REFEREED (4,417) (3,126)
— from discontinued operation — REERIEEEER - (27,104)
(4,417) (30,230)
Profit for the year RNEZE T 28,242 30,656
Total comprehensive income (expense) 2 E s (Bisk) 42%8
attributable to: FE(R &5
Owners of the Company YNNI 42 32,298 61,543
Non-controlling interests FEIE R (4,424) (28,274)
27,874 33,269
EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE BREF (BE) 15
From continuing and discontinued REFHENM
operations BRI E T
- Basic — &R HK1.91 HK5.33
cents &1 cents 71l
~ Diluted — HK(1.29) HK(6.36)
cents &1l cents 71l
From continuing operations REFELEER
— Basic — &R HK1.91 HK8.99
cents &1l cents A1l
— Diluted —#58 HK(1.29) HK(4.40)

cents B4l cents Il
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

fra MR

At 31 December 2012
R-ZFE——F+—-HA=4+—H

2012 2011
—E-CfF —ET——F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
ok FHET FATT
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment WE -« BE MRS 16 3,317 4,118
Prepaid lease payments AN FEOFIE 17 5,113 5,230
8,430 9,348
Current assets MENEE
Properties under development ERPYE 18 610,669 576,810
Held-for-trading investments BEEERE 19 25,185 43,178
Other receivables H A el FhE 20 14,010 25,297
Deposits and prepayments L& RIBNRIA 6,789 7,796
Bank balances and cash WITEER LES 21 33,265 30,226
689,918 683,307
Current liabilities mEAaE
Trade and other payables ENERNEMENRIE 22 42,836 52,144
Amounts due to directors of B R RIZESE A
subsidiaries 23 - 4,388
Amounts due to non-controlling FERTBT B A A
shareholders of subsidiaries JEIE AR IR B S IE 23 26,156 32,057
Obligation under a finance lease A FH Ay R 24 - 77
Convertible notes Al R 25 — 595,797
Other borrowings — HMEE —
amount due within one year —FRREEEE 26 17,191 1,523
86,183 685,986
Net current assets (liabilities) REEE (BfF) FE 603,735 (2,679)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERTHAE 612,165 6,669
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

fra MR

At 31 December 2012
RZF——F+=—H=4+—H

2012 2011
—E--F —E——%F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Hiat THET FET

Non-current liability FEmBAEE
Convertible notes EE & 25 134,694 -
477,471 6,669

Capital and reserves BRI
Share capital &% 2R 27 14,895 35,465
Reserves & 243,975 (244,149)

Equity (capital deficiency) attributable 7/ &)f% 3R 1L

to owners of the Company B (BAREL) 258,870 (208,684)
Non-controlling interests FEVERR B 2 218,601 215,353
477,471 6,669

The consolidated financial statements on pages 66 to 175
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 27 March 2013 and are signed on its behalf
by:

YEUNG KWOK YU
% B E
Director

EF

HNFEOEEFITSAEZHEEMBRRE
R-E—=H=f= +tﬁﬁé§$A il
NIZETE > WA TIESRRRE

CATHERINE CHEN
BRE
Managing Director

EFLRATE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
B) ¥R

B IR AN

m

For the year ended 31 December 2012

BE _F——F1_H=1—HIFE
Attributable to owners of the Company
ARARREE
Exchange  Share Capital Accumulated Non-
Share Share  Capital ~ General translation  option redemption (losses) controlling
capital premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve reserve profits Sub-total interests Total
BRE  EREE 2if FER
Bx ROEE BARE -HREE ENGRE fife B (B8 &d it B 2
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Tén TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEn T Tén TEn  TEr TEx
(Notea) ~ (Note )
(Wida)  (With)
At 1 January 2011 RZE-——F-f-H 354,722 1,189,053 4289 11,705 24,838 3,306 34 (1,858174) (270227) 221,79 (48,431)
Exchange differences arising on RFEMEERR
translation of functional currengy to SHEREEL Y
presentation currency EiEE - - - - 657 - - - 657  19% 2613
Profit (loss) for the year REEER (8) - - - - - - - 60,88 60,886  (30,230) 30,65
Total comprehensive income (expense) ~ AEEZEUA (Fx) €8
for the year - - - - 657 - - 60886 61543  (28274) 33,269
Reduction of share capital upon REABERHEIRRA
capital reorganisation (319,257) (1,189,053) - - - - - 1,508,310 - - -
Lapse of share options BRIELN = = = - - (3308 - 3,306 = = =
Reserves released upon disposal of REERBARRRERE
subsidiaries - - - (11480)  (23384) - - 34,864 - - -
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 13) HERBAR (H213) - - - - = = = = -0 283
At 31 December 2011 RZE——F+ZA=+-H 35465 = 4,289 225 2111 - 34 (250,808) (208,684) 215,353 6,669
Exchange differences arising on REMERA
translation of functional currency SHEREEL
to presentation currency X EE = = = = (361) - - - (361) ] (368)
Profit (loss) for the year REERT (BB - - - - - - - 32659 32,659  (4417) 28,242
Total comprehensive income AEEZANA (RY) 68
(expense) for the year - - - - (361) - - 32,65 32298  (444) 27874
Capital injection from a REFERRRTE
non-controlling shareholder - - - - - - - - - 6,911 6,911
Elimination on disposal of REEHBAREHS
subsidiaries (note 13) (H13) = = = = - = = = - 761 761
Issue of shares upon conversion of REATERRZER
convertible notes iRty 758 411498 - - - - - - 43505 - 435256
Reduction of share capital upon RERBARERRA
capital reorganisation (44,328) (411,498 - - - - - 455,826 - - -
At 31 December 2012 WIB-Z5+ZA=F-8  148% - 4,289 225 1,750 - 34 237,677 258,870 218601 477471
Notes: i3
(a)  Capital reserve represents the reserve arising from the (@) ZBARBHEAR -—NANAFETZEESE
group restructuring which took place in 1996. A FTE A o
(b)  General reserve comprises Enterprise Expansion Fund and  (b) —ﬂxfﬁﬁ BIEFEARKENEE THE
General Reserve Fund set aside by certain subsidiaries AARBILEME D TZ%H MBI AN
in the People’s Republic of China in accordance with *MHE'H?E%ZTE%%E%@%D-E%{%
the memorandum and articles of association of those £E o

subsidiaries.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

CEEemEXR

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BFE_FT——F1T_A=1—HIFE

2012 2011
—E-Cf T %
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Hrit THERT TAT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REER
Profit before taxation from continuing and ~ #HE&LE K& 1E
discontinued operations B EERTAE 28,242 30,656
Adjustments for: R
Allowance for bad debt and doubtful debts ~FiZBE# (& - 21,412
Allowance for inventories FERE - 41,462
Release of prepaid lease payments BRNELAFIEER 117 17
Deposits and prepayments written off B RIEF ZIBM - 2,789
Depreciation of property, M EERSEBITE
plant and equipment 1,025 1,040
Finance costs BERK 18,973 42,770
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAR Y 13 (24,215) (21,477)
Loss on early redemption of REBOTRRRECEE
convertible notes 3,162 -
Interest income FEBA (1,012) (1,718)
Net gain on derivative financial instruments $T4 &R T B2 W5 %45 (77,703) (235,964)
Net loss on held-for-trading investments HIEEERBECEBRFE 17,993 36,437
Operating cash flows before movements LEECRBHLERERE
in working capital (33,418) (82,476)
Increase in property under development BRI (33,859) (50,705)
Increase in inventories FEE - (15,297)
(Increase) decrease in other receivables Hipelgag (&) md (1,094) 1,110
Decrease in deposits and prepayments Be REAFERD 1,007 11,861
Net decrease in held-for-trading investments ##{EEERE W F5E - 15,387
Increase (decrease) in trade and EREFREAM
other payables JEhL/TV\IEi-j]u i) 8,975 (9,480)
Decrease in amounts due to JERHB AR ESZIERY
directors subsidiaries (4,388) -
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES S& ¥ AR S EE (62,777) (129,600)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REXK
Deferred consideration from disposal of HERMMNT &
food processing and distribution operation D HERK L IELRE 11,646 18,000
Interest received B I B 1,012 1,718
Purchase of property, plant and equipment  BEE%¥ - BiE LR E (223) (1,305)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEM B R A 13 - (23,038)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) INVESTING R&EZFBEXL (FTH) BEFE
ACTIVITIES 12,435 (4,625)

B
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

CEEemEXR

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE _FT——F1 _A=1—HIFE

2012 2011
—8-F —ET——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FTAET
FINANCING ACTIVITIES METE
Proceed from issue of convertible notes BT EE 7 TR R 120,000 -
Raised of other borrowings SEHEMER 17,191 -
Capital contribution from a non-controlling REFERBRR TR
shareholder 6,911 -
Advances from non-controlling shareholders PELIEUNGIE S E kit
of subsidiaries 1,681 22,090
Redemption of convertible notes B A RREE (90,000) -
Repayment of other borrowings BREMEE (1,523) (2,000)
Interest paid BERFES (279) (3,037)
Repayment of obligation under EEMEHERK
a finance lease (77) (77)
New bank loans raised BESZHBITER - 79,283
Repayments of bank loans ERIFITER - (77,905)
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES METHELEZRESFE 53,904 18,354
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND BeNHEELZEER
CASH EQUIVALENTS #2m (i) B8 3,562 (115,871)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT —A-AzBEeRELEEER
1 JANUARY 30,226 143,492
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE ExgBo28
RATE CHANGES (523) 2,605
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS +=ZB=+—-HzHER
AT 31 DECEMBER, REEEER
represented by bank balances and cash SRITEE B RIBRE KRR 33,265 30,226
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Notes to the Conso
AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BFE_FT——F1T_A=1—HIFE

1. GENERAL

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda as
an exempted company with limited liability and
its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). As at
31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011, the
Company did not have immediate and ultimate
holding company. The address of the registered
office and principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the Corporate Information
of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"”) while the functional
currency of the Company is Renminbi (“RMB") and
the functional currencies of the Company’s principal
subsidiaries are RMB and Hong Kong dollars. The
directors consider the presentation currency in HK$
is more useful for its current and potential investors.

The Company acts as an investment holding
company. The principal activities of its subsidiaries
as at 31 December 2012 are investment in securities
and property development business. The Group
was also engaged in manufacture of and trading in
timber products business which was discontinued in
the year 2011 as disclosed in note 13(b).

idated Financial Statements
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RRAR IR BREGMKL 2 ERR
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BHEMREAREEERER -

ARAR—REABRAR - R-F
——&+=A=+-8 HTHEX
Az EBEBAESRARYERE
£ - ARETYHEREREEAR
HERES (BR-F——ERILE
#)  BRERRIE 130 RE -

PEFRERDHOEEARAT 2012 £ 73



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE _FT——F1 _A=1—HIFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In preparing the consolidated financial statements,
the directors of the Company have given
consideration to the future liquidity of the Group,
despite the fact that the Group has a profit of
HK$28,242,000 in the current year and as of
31 December 2012, the Group has net current
assets of HK$603,735,000, however, as at 31
December 2012, the Group has current liabilities
of approximately HK$86,183,000 to be settled
within the next twelve months from the end of the
reporting period, which exceed its cash and cash
equivalent of HK$33,265,000. The directors of the
Company are confident that the Group’s liquidity
can be improved as (i) the Group can obtain new
banking facilities through the pledge of its equity
interest in the property development project and
the land use rights in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC"); (ii) the Group can dispose of
its held-for-trading investments of approximately
HK$25,185,000 to finance its short term obligations;
and (iii) the directors of the Company expect that
the first phase of the property development project
will be available for pre-sale in the second half of
2013 which can improve the operating cash flows of
the Group significantly.

Taking into account the abovementioned measures,
the directors of the Company believe that the Group
is able to satisfy its financial obligations in the
foreseeable future and accordingly, the consolidated
financial statements have been prepared on a going
concern basis.
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ERELE T iE

For the year ended 31 December 2012

2 F

—E g A=+ —HIFFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied the
following amendments to HKFRSs issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA").

Amendments to
HKAS 12

Deferred tax: Recovery of
underlying assets

Amendments to Financial instruments:

HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Transfers

of financial assets

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs
in the current year has had no material effect
on the amounts reported in these consolidated
financial statements and disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

FERFIREEIT TRV BREZER
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Notes to the Conso
AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE _FT——F1 _A=1—HIFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)
The Group has not early applied the following
new and revised Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and HKFRSs, amendments and
interpretation (“INTs”) (hereinafter collectively
referred to as the “new and revised HKFRSs") that
have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to Annual improvements to
HKFRSs HKFRSs 2009-2011 cycle!
Amendments to Disclosures — Offsetting
HKFRS 7 financial assets and
financial liabilities’
Amendments to Mandatory effective date of
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 9 and transition
HKFRS 7 disclosures®
Amendments to Consolidated financial
HKFRS 10, statements, joint
HKFRS 11 and arrangements and disclosure
HKFRS 12 of interests in other entities:

Transition guidance’

Amendments to Investment entities?
HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments?
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BFE_FT——F1T_A=1—HIFE

R REERTERMBREER
([ERPBHREEN]) (&)

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 3.
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 10 Consolidated financial BERBRE RENB®RE
statements! KRIZE10%
HKFRS 11 Joint arrangements' BANBERE ALY
RRIE115
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of interests in BERBRE REMER
other entities’ HERIZE125% BEaBE
HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement' BERBRE ATERE
RRIZE13%
HKAS 19 Employee benefits' BELER EERRFI
(Revised 2011) F195% (B
—E——F
&zT)
HKAS 27 Separate financial statements' BB BUMBERE
(Revised 2011) E275
(RZZ——F
EHD)
HKAS 28 Investments in associates BELRER REERR R
(Revised 2011) and joint ventures' £ 285 BERNAZRE
(RZZ——F
EHD)
Amendments to Presentation of items of BEGER Hiv2EWEER 2
HKAS 1 other comprehensive BIR2BITR 25N
income*
Amendments to Offsetting financial assets BAGHER| PREER
HKAS 32 and financial liabilities? FNHZETER RABHETER
HK(IFRIC) — INT 20 Stripping costs in the Bk (ARHE BRESEESRN
production phase of RERBZEE) fBAAR
a surface mine’ — 2EE20%

R-T—=F—A—B=xAEKH
B2 FEBEAER -

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after L
1 January 2013.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 2 RZE—NF—A— B AER
1 January 2014. 18 2 FEEAM AR

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 3 R-E—RAF— A —H=(ABHA
1 January 2015. R FREM AR o

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 4 RZE——_FtA—HxAERA
1 July 2012. e 2 FEEMAER

: FEFRERDHEEAR AT 2012 £ 77



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE _FT——F1 _A=1—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of items
of other comprehensive income

The amendments to HKAS 1 “Presentation
of items of other comprehensive income”
introduce new terminology for the statement of
comprehensive income and income statement.
Under the amendments to HKAS 1, a ‘statement of
comprehensive income’ is renamed as a ‘statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income’ and
an ‘income statement’ is renamed as a ‘statement
of profit or loss’. The amendments to HKAS 1
retain the option to present profit or loss and other
comprehensive income in either a single statement
or in two separate but consecutive statements.
However, the amendments to HKAS 1 require items
of other comprehensive income to be grouped into
two categories: (a) items that will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss; and (b) items that
may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
when specific conditions are met. Income tax on
items of other comprehensive income is required to
be allocated on the same basis — the amendments
do not change the option to present items of other
comprehensive income either before tax or net of tax.

The amendments will be adopted in the Group's
consolidated financial statements for the annual
period beginning 1 January 2013 but the directors
of the Company do not anticipate that the
amendments will have a material effect on the
Group's consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BFE_FT——F1T_A=1—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial
assets. HKFRS 9 amended in 2010 includes the
requirements for the classification and measurement
of financial liabilities and for derecognition.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as
follows:

o All recognised financial assets that are within
the scope of HKAS 39 “Financial instruments:
Recognition and measurement” to be
subsequently measured at amortised cost
or fair value. Specifically, debt investments
that are held within a business model whose
objective is to collect the contractual cash
flows, and that have contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortised cost at
the end of subsequent accounting periods.
All other debt investments and equity
investments are measured at their fair values
at the end of subsequent reporting periods.
In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may
make an irrevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value of an
equity investment (that is not held for trading)
in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit
or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HRARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2012
HE—F——F+_A=+—HIFEF

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (Continued)

o With regard to the measurement of financial
liabilities (designated as at fair value through
profit or loss), HKFRS 9 requires that the
amount of change in the fair value of the
financial liability that is attributable to changes
in the credit risk of that liability is presented
in other comprehensive income, unless the
recognition of the effects of changes in the
liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive
income would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair
value of financial liabilities attributable to
change in the financial liabilities’ credit risk
are not subsequently reclassified to profit or
loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire amount of
the change in the fair value of the financial
liability designated as at fair value through
profit or loss was presented in profit or loss.

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual period beginning
on or after 1 January 2015, with earlier application
permitted. The directors of the Company anticipate
that HKFRS 9 will be adopted in the Group's
consolidated financial statements for the annual
period beginning 1 January 2015. Except for
the held-for-trading investments and derivative
components of the convertible notes, the directors
of the Company anticipate that the application
of HKFRS 9 will not affect the classification and
measurement of the Group’'s other financial assets
and liabilities as at 31 December 2012. Regarding
the Group’s derivative components of the convertible
notes, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable
estimate of that effect until a detailed review has
been completed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BFE_FT——F1T_A=1—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and revised standards on consolidation,
joint arrangements, associates and disclosures
In June 2011, a package of five standards on
consolidation, joint arrangements, associates and
disclosures was issued, including HKFRS 10, HKFRS
11, HKFRS 12, HKAS 27 (as revised in 2011) and
HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011).

Key requirements of these five standards are
described below.

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27
“Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements”
that deal with consolidated financial statements.
HK (SIC) — INT 12 “Consolidation — Special purpose
entities” will be withdrawn upon the effective date
of HKFRS 10. Under HKFRS 10, there is only one
basis for consolidation, that is, control. In addition,
HKFRS 10 includes a new definition of control that
contains three elements: (a) power over an investee,
(b) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee, and (c) the ability
to use its power over the investee to affect the
amount of the investor’s returns. Extensive guidance
has been added in HKFRS 10 to deal with complex
scenarios.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE _FT——F1 _A=1—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and revised standards on consolidation,
joint arrangements, associates and disclosures
(Continued)

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 “Interests in joint
ventures”. HKFRS 11 deals with how a joint
arrangement of which two or more parties have
joint control should be classified. HK(SIC) — INT
13 “Jointly controlled entities — Non-monetary
contributions by venturers” will be withdrawn upon
the effective date of HKFRS 11. Under HKFRS 11,
joint arrangements are classified as joint operations
or joint ventures, depending on the rights and
obligations of the parties to the arrangements. In
contrast, under HKAS 31, there are three types of
joint arrangements: jointly controlled entities, jointly
controlled assets and jointly controlled operations.
In addition, joint ventures under HKFRS 11 are
required to be accounted for using the equity
method of accounting, whereas jointly controlled
entities under HKAS 31 can be accounted for using
the equity method of accounting or proportionate
consolidation.

HKFRS 12 is a disclosure standard and is applicable
to entities that have interests in subsidiaries, joint
arrangements, associates and/or unconsolidated
structured entities. In general, the disclosure
requirements in HKFRS 12 are more extensive than
those in the current standards.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HRARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BEr—F——F+_A=+—HIFEF

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

New and revised standards on consolidation,
joint arrangements, associates and disclosures
(Continued)

In July 2012, the amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS
11 and HKFRS 12 were issued to clarify certain
transitional guidance on the application of these five
HKFRSs for the first time.

These five standards, together with the amendments
relating to the transitional guidance, are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013
with earlier application permitted provided that all
of these standards are applied at the same time. The
directors of the Company have assessed the control
in respect of its subsidiaries under the new definition
in the new and revised HKFRSs. The directors of the
Company anticipate that the application of these
five standards is unlikely to have significant impact
on amounts in connection with subsidiaries of the
Company currently reported in the consolidated
financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE _FT——F1 _A=1—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (Continued)

HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement

HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance
for fair value measurements and disclosures about
fair value measurements. The Standard defines
fair value, establishes a framework for measuring
fair value, and requires disclosures about fair value
measurements. The scope of HKFRS 13 is broad; it
applies to both financial instrument items and non-
financial instrument items for which other HKFRSs
require or permit fair value measurements and
disclosures about fair value measurements, except
in specified circumstances. In general, the disclosure
requirements in HKFRS 13 are more extensive
than those in the current standards. For example,
quantitative and qualitative disclosures based on the
three-level fair value hierarchy currently required for
financial instruments only under HKFRS 7 “Financial
instruments: Disclosures” will be extended by HKFRS
13 to cover all assets and liabilities within its scope.

HKFRS 13 is effective for the Group for annual
period beginning on 1 January 2013, with earlier
application permitted. The directors of the Company
anticipate that HKFRS 13 will be adopted in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements for the
annual period beginning 1 January 2013 and that
the application of HKFRS 13 will not have a material
effect on the amounts reported in the consolidated
financial statements but may result in more extensive
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of the other new and revised HKFRSs
will have no material impact on the consolidated
financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

BE—F——F+-_A=+—HIFE
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA. In
addition,
include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

the consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost basis except
for certain derivative financial instruments, which
are measured at fair values as explained in the
accounting policies set out below. Historical
cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods or
services.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control
is achieved where the Company has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an
entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income
from the effective dates of acquisition and up to the
effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used by
other members of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE _FT——F1 _A=1—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are
presented separately from the Group’s equity
therein.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and represents
amount receivable for goods sold in the normal
course of business, net of discounts and sales related
taxes.

Dividend income from held-for-trading investments is
recognised when the shareholder’s rights to receive
payment have been established.

Interest income from financial assets is recognised
when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the amount of income can
be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

BE—F——F+-_A=+—HIFE
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Properties under development

Properties under development for sale in the
ordinary course of business is included in current
assets and are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Net realisable value is determined as
the estimated selling price for the properties less all
estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to
make the sales. Costs relating to the development of
properties include land cost, construction cost and
other direct development expenditure.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including land and
buildings held for use in the production or supply
of goods or services, or for administrative purposes
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of items of property, plant and equipment, over their
estimated useful lives and after taking into account
their estimated residual values, using the straight
line method. The estimated useful lives,
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective
basis.

residual

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated
over their expected useful lives on the same basis as
owned assets.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

HBr—F——F+-_H=+—HIFF
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there
is reasonable assurance that the Group will comply
with the conditions attaching to them and that the
grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss
on a systematic basis over the periods in which
the Group recognises as expenses the related costs
for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Specifically, government grants whose primary
condition is that the Group should purchase,
construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets are
recognised as deferred income in the consolidated
statement of financial position and transferred to
profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis over
the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred
or for the purpose of giving immediate financial
support to the Group with no future related costs
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they become receivable.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

BE—F——F+-_A=+—HIFE
4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment losses on assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its assets to
determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets
are also allocated to individual cash-generating units,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group
of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to
its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

HBr—F——F+-_H=+—HIFF
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment losses on assets (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but
so that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
as income immediately.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is calculated using the
weighted average method. Net realisable value is
determined as the estimated net selling price for
inventories less all estimated costs of completion
and costs to make the sales.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other
leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised
as assets of the Group at their fair value at the
inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present
value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in
the consolidated statement of financial position
as a finance lease obligation. Lease payments
are apportioned between finance expenses and
reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a
constant rate of interest on the remaining balance
of the liability. Finance expenses are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
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4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Leasing (Continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight line basis over the term of
the relevant lease. Benefits received and receivable
as an incentive to enter into an operating lease are
recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the
lease term on a straight line basis.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building
elements, the Group assesses the classification of
each element as a finance or an operating lease
separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred
to the Group, unless it is clear that both elements
are operating leases, in which case the entire lease
is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the
minimum lease payments (including any lump-
sum upfront payments) are allocated between the
land and the building elements in proportion to the
relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the
land element and building element of the lease at
the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments
can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land that
is accounted for as an operating lease is presented
as “prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated
statement of financial position and is amortised over
the lease term on a straight line basis. When the
lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between
the land and building elements, the entire lease is
generally classified as a finance lease and accounted
for as property, plant and equipment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE _FT——F1 _A=1—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
profit as reported in consolidated statement of
comprehensive income because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and it further excludes items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

BE—F——F+-_A=+—HIFE
4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
there will be sufficient taxable profits against which
to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences
and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of the reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
in which the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax
liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences
that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities. Current and deferred tax is recognised
in profit or loss.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
on the consolidated statement of financial position
when a group entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial
assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value
of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

BE—F——F+-_A=+—HIFE
4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
("FVTPL"),
sale financial assets. The classification depends on
the nature and purpose of the financial assets and
is determined at the time of initial recognition. All
regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

loans and receivables and available-for-

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
and of allocating interest income over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees on points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest
basis for debt instrument.
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4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
The Group’s financial assets at FVTPL represent
financial assets held-for-trading. A financial asset is
classified as held-for-trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the near future; or

o it is part of an identified portfolio of financial
instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair
value, with changes in fair value arising from
remeasurement recognised directly in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividends
or interest earned on the financial assets and is
included in turnover in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to
initial recognition, loans and receivables (including
other receivables and bank balances) are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any identified impairment losses (see accounting
policy on impairment loss on financial assets below).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BFE_FT——F1T_A=1—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
that are either designated or not classified as
financial assets at FVTPL, loans and receivables or
held-to-maturity investments.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that
are classified as available-for-sale and are traded
in an active market are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period. Changes in the
carrying amount of available-for-sale monetary
financial assets relating to interest income calculated
using the effective interest method and dividends on
available-for-sale equity investments are recognised
in profit or loss. Other changes in the carrying
amount of available-for-sale financial assets are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated under the heading of investments
revaluation reserve. When the investment is
disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in
the investments revaluation reserve is reclassified to
profit or loss (see the accounting policy in respect of
impairment loss on financial assets below).

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments
are recognised in profit or loss when the Group's
right to receive the dividends is established.

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not
have a quoted market price in an active market and
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured and
derivatives that are linked to and must be settled
by delivery of such unquoted equity investments
are measured at cost less any identified impairment
losses at the end of each reporting period (see the
accounting policy in respect of impairment loss on
financial assets below).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE _FT——F1 _A=1—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVPTL, are
assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of
the reporting period. Financial assets are considered
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to be impaired where there is objective evidence BRERE-—BXNZHEEGHMERS
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred REEBREReMEE 2t KRR
after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the EmEXITE  ARALIRREIE -

estimated future cash flows of the financial assets
have been affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a MAIHEREREMS - ZIRERQ
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of FHEAZSIRAERKE - BIR AR
that investment below its cost is considered to be B2 EEERE -

objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of MAEHMEREEMS  REZE

impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

BREEA R

o  BITAIBFHBREEYH
2 3K

. breach of contract, such as default or o  EREHX - wEHsERT A
delinquency in interest or principal payments; AR K
or

. it becoming probable that the borrower will o [ERABFIREWERETHR

enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as
other receivables, assets that are assessed not to be
impaired individually are, in addition, assessed for
impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence
of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could
include the Group's past experience of collecting
payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the average credit
period, observable changes in national or local
economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BFE_FT——F1T_A=1—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
amount of the impairment loss recognised is the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount
of impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset. Such impairment loss will not be
reversed in the subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced
by the impairment loss directly for all financial
assets.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is
considered to be impaired, cumulative gains or
losses previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss in the period
in which the impairment takes place.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment
losses was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to
the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at
the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE _FT——F1 _A=1—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued
by a group entity are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements entered
into and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective
interest basis.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including other payables,
amounts due to directors of subsidiaries/non-
controlling shareholders of subsidiaries, other
borrowings and the liability component of
convertible notes) are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BFE_FT——F1T_A=1—HIFE

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Convertible notes that contains liability component,
conversion option derivative and early redemption
option derivatives
Convertible notes issued by the Group that contain
both liability and embedded derivatives (conversion
option and early redemption option which is not
closely related to the host liability component) are
classified separately into respective items on initial
recognition. Conversion option that will be settled
other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of
cash or another financial asset for a fixed number of
the Group's own equity instruments is a conversion
option derivative. At the date of issue, both the
liability and embedded derivatives are recognised at
fair value.

In subsequent periods, the liability component of
the convertible notes is carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. The embedded
derivatives are measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

The embedded derivatives are remeasured at
their fair value immediately prior to the date of
redemption or conversion of the convertible notes
with changes in fair value being recognised in profit
or loss. For redemption of convertible notes, the
resulting gain or loss (calculated at the difference
between the redemption amount paid and the
carrying amount of the convertible notes, being
the aggregate amount of the liability component,
conversion option derivative and early redemption
option derivative) is recognised in profit or loss. For
conversion of convertible notes, the carrying amount
of the convertible notes is transferred to equity
with the resulting shares issued being recorded as
additional share capital at nominal value of the
shares and the excess of the carrying amount of
the convertible notes over the nominal value of the
shares being recorded in share premium.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE _FT——F1 _A=1—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Convertible notes that contains liability component,
conversion option derivative and early redemption
option derivatives (Continued)

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible notes are allocated to the liability
and embedded derivatives in proportion to their
relative fair values. Transaction costs relating to the
embedded derivatives are charged to profit or loss
immediately. Transaction costs relating to the liability
component are included in the carrying amount of
the liability portion and amortised over the period
of the convertible notes using the effective interest
method.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the
date when derivative contracts are entered into and
are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at
the end of the reporting period. The resulting gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety,
the difference between the asset's carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when,
and only when, the Group’s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or expire. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to directors and employees of
the Company

The fair value of services received determined by
reference to the fair value of share options granted
at the grant date is recognised as an expense in full
at the grant date when the share options granted
vest immediately, with a corresponding increase in
equity (share option reserve).

When the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will
be transferred to share premium. When the share
options are forfeited after the vesting date or are
still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be
transferred to accumulated profits (losses).

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recorded in its functional
currency (i.e. the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates) at the
rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they arise. Exchange differences arising on
the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at
fair value are included in the profit or loss for the
period.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated
financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the
Group's entities are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars)
at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of
the reporting period. Income and expenses are
translated at the average exchange rates for the
year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during the period, in which case, the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity under the heading of exchange translation
reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as
appropriate).

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF")
scheme are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered services entitling them
to the contribution. Payments made to state-
managed retirement benefit schemes are dealt with
as payments to defined contribution schemes where
the Group’s obligations under the schemes are
equivalent to those arising in a defined contribution
retirement benefits scheme.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BFE_FT——F1T_A=1—HIFE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
The following are the key assumptions concerning
the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period,
that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Fair value of embedded conversion option and
early redemption option of convertible notes
The directors of the Company use their judgement
in selecting an appropriate valuation technique to
determine fair value of embedded conversion option
and early redemption option of the convertible notes
which are not quoted in an active market. Valuation
techniques commonly used by market practitioners
are applied. The fair value of the derivative financial
liabilities are determined at the end of the reporting
period with movements in fair value recognised
in profit or loss. In estimating the fair value of
these derivative financial liabilities, the Group uses
independent valuation which is based on various
inputs and estimates based on quoted market rates
and adjusted for specific features of the instrument
(see note 25). If the inputs and estimates applied
in the model are different, the carrying amount of
these derivative financial liabilities will change. The
carrying value of the embedded conversion option
and early redemption option of convertible notes
at 31 December 2012 were HK$73,492,000 (2011:
HK$248,461,000).
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the
entities in the Group will be able to continue as
a going concern while maximising the return to
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt
and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net
debt, which includes amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries, convertible notes, bank
balances and cash as disclosed in respective notes
and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital
structure on a semi-annually basis. As part of this
review, the directors consider the cost of capital and
will balance its overall capital structure through the
new shares issues as well as the issue of new debt
or the redemption of existing debt.
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idated Financial Statements

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS @I HE
Categories of financial instruments SRITAER
2012 2011
= —
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHT
Financial assets cTRMEE
Loans and receivables (including ERNERFE (81
cash and cash equivalent) ReMRSEEEE) 47,273 55,523
Financial assets at FVTPL BAVERABRZ
TREE 25,185 43,178
72,458 98,701
Financial liabilities =R
Amortised cost B SHRK AN 119,923 418,001
Derivative financial liabilities PTEEMEE 73,492 248,461
193,415 666,462
Financial risk management objectives and BREREEE N REBE

policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
other receivables, other payables, amounts due to
directors of subsidiaries/non-controlling shareholders
of subsidiaries, convertible notes, other borrowings
and bank balances and cash. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in the respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.

AEBZFESRMT EBFEEMER
IE - HMENFIE - BB AR
EEME AR IEIERRERE -
MR EE « EMEE - ARIRTTE
BREAE -  LEERMITAEZFIBERE
MR HE - TXEIELESF
T A 2 @ kg KOR R It 2 @ b 2 B
K- -BEEeEEREEZZRRE
LA B £ BE I 5 B2 78 R SR EGE B 8
i
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 7.
Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk

(i) Currency risk
At the end of the reporting period certain
subsidiaries of the Company have certain
assets and liabilities (details are disclosed in
respective notes) are denominated in foreign
currencies, which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk. The Group currently does
not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, the management monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should
the need arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign
currency denominated monetary assets and
monetary liabilities at end of the reporting
period are as follows:

eMIA (&)
MHEAREERNREE (&)

% RS

(i)

471N BEE [ B
RARETHEBRRNREH
EREHEESR TUIINESTEZ
BERBE (FERBBHE
W) WAEEAEESINE
[B B o 7N B 3R B I M A fr] S0
SRR - A BEEES
EEVESNERMR c WEBRA®
205 B E K HNE R B 1T
/EP °

AEBUIINEHECEREE
EkEBEABERREREREZ
FREEWNT :

2012 2011
—EB-—F —E——%F
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BE afE BE BfE
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FHERT TAETT FHET
Hong Kong dollars &7t 42,852 69,007 41,377 365,151
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to exchange
rate fluctuations of Hong Kong dollars. The
following table details the Group's sensitivity
to a 5% (2011: 5%) increase in RMB against
the Hong Kong dollars while all other variables
are held constant. 5% (2011: 5%) is the
sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign
currency risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change
in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity
analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items and
adjusts their translation at the end of the
reporting period for a 5% (2011: 5%) change
in foreign currency rates.

The sensitivity analysis includes monetary
items where the denomination of the balances
is in a currency other than the functional
currency of the respective group entities. A
positive number below indicates an increase
in profit for the year where RMB strengthen
5% (2011: 5%) against the relevant currency
while a negative number represents a decrease
in profit for the year. For a 5% (2011: 5%)
weakening of RMB against the relevant

eMIA (&)
MEEREERNRIECK (&)

TSR (&)
iy HNERRR (&)
BUREDM

$$.£K7¥KX/%7EZI: <R
Bk T%#Wﬁﬁl#A
REEIBTT EHS% (ZF
—F :5%) MEMAEEMEE
BRI E ZHRE 5% ( =
T——%F 5% ) JIAFME
EERABEWMIMNER AT
RAzBRE  IRKREEEY
EXRSIEAE 27T H - &
RRE D TE D RIAINESE 2
ANENERIER - WRmEH
mﬁﬁﬂﬁETZB%ﬂ_T—
—F :5%) EHRHEKRE

BRESTEENEBERE
BINGEEB N BEETIEZ
HMIER &% c W T2 FEEE
TRARBEEBEE ZEX
FH% (T ——4F :5%)
ZERTERBFZIEM - M
BHEABTRERGHZ ML -
MARELABEE ZEXRT
5% (ZZF— —F :5%) -
FEEXEEEAR ZARESE

currency, there would be an equal and & o
opposite impact on the result for the year.
2012 2011
= —
HK$°000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Hong Kong dollars BT 1,251 16,189

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity
analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent
currency risk as the year end exposure does
not reflect the exposure during the year.
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i) Interest rate risk
At 31 December 2011, the Group is exposed
to fair value interest rate risk in relation to
fixed rate convertible notes and a three-year
loan note. At 31 December 2012, the Group
is exposed to fair value interest risk in relation
to fixed rate convertible notes. The Group
also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to bank deposits. The Group currently
does not have an interest rate hedging policy.
However, the management monitors interest
rate exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the
need arise. The fixed rate short-term bank
deposits is subject to cash flow interest rate
risk as the fixed deposits are renewed every
one to three months.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to
interest rates for bank deposits at the end
of the reporting period. For short-term bank
deposits, the analysis is prepared assuming
the amount of bank deposits at the end of
the reporting period was existing for the
whole year. A 50 (2011: 50) basis point
increase or decrease is used which represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates.

If the interest rates had been 50 (2011: 50)
basis points higher and all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s profit for the year
ended 31 December 2012 would increase by
HK$125,000 (2011: increase by HK$151,000).
For interest rates 50 (2011: 50) basis points
lower, the Group’s profit for the year ended
31 December 2012 would decrease by
HK$20,700 (2011: HK$4,400) assuming bank
balances carrying interest rate at 0.01% per
annum drop to zero.
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity
analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent
interest rate risk as the year end exposure
does not reflect the exposure during the year.

Other price risk

The Group was exposed to equity price risk
arising from the conversion option derivative
and early redemption option (derivative
components) of the convertible notes. The fair
values of the conversion option derivative and
early redemption option were calculated using
the binomial option pricing model. Details of
the derivative financial instrument is set out in
note 25.

If the input of share price to the valuation
models of the derivative components of the

$®ITAE (&)
BEEREEENREE (&)

TS mEE (&)

(i)

(iii)

xR (&)

BRENT (&)

ERERA  HMRERZAR
TR EE 2 B
RE 5 5T R % 2% B Pl A

o
PR

H b E1% R
AREEAZRAIBRRRIE 2
BRBAENTETARREED
HE (PTETERD) REL
ZBEARERERR o RN
TETARREFBERREZ A
FETDRA B HEEER
AABE - TESRMIAZFE
IR MIEE25

i AR MR RR 2 TE TR
B2 HEEXZRE LT

convertible notes had been 5% higher/lower T 5% - 1 P H fth & 24
while all other variables were held constant, A RERFAEIE M OF
the profit for the year would increase )T
(decrease) as follows:
2012 2011
—E-CF —B——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THExT FHET
Higher by 5% EA5%
— Derivative components —PTET RIS (6,700) (27,853)
Lower by 5% T 5%
— Derivative components —PIET A 6,700 pY- 7o
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(iiiy ~ Other price risk (Continued)
The Group is also exposed to equity security
price risk through its held-for-trading
investments. The management of the Group
manages this exposure by maintaining a
portfolio of investments with different
risk. The Group’s equity price risk is mainly
concentrated on equity instruments operating
in manufacturing investment industry section
quoted in the Stock Exchange. The directors of
the Company will monitor the price risk and
will consider hedging the risk exposure should
the need arise. If the market prices of the
held-for-trading investments had been 10%
higher/lower, the Group’s profit for the year
would increase/decrease by HK$2,519,000
(2011: HK$4,318,000).

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
other receivables. The maximum exposure to credit
risk in the event of the counterparties’ failure to
perform their obligations at the end of the reporting
period in relation to each class of recognised
financial assets is the carrying amount of those
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position. In order to minimise the credit
risk, the management of the Group has delegated a
team responsible for determination of credit limits,
credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews
the recoverable amount of each individual trade
debt at the end of the reporting period to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that the Group’s credit
risk is significantly reduced. In 2011, the Group
has disposed of its timber operations, and as at 31
December 2011 and 31 December 2012, the Group
does not have any trade receivables that exposed to
credit risk.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

At 31 December 2012, the Group has concentration
risk on consideration receivable for disposal of food
processing and distribution operation amounting
to HK$13,354,000 (2011: HK$25,000,000), which
represented 95.0% (2011: 98.8%) of the total other
receivables. The directors of the Company consider
that the credit risk is satisfactory in light of the fact
that the Company has continued to receive regular
repayment and has entered into a supplemental
agreement with the counterparty agreeing that full
amount will be settled on or before 31 May 2013.

At 31 December 2012, the Group has concentration
risk on its held-for-trading investments with
67% (2011: 46%) of the total held-for-trading
investments concentrated in a single entity which is
listed in Hong Kong.

The credit risk on bank deposits and bank balances
is limited because the counterparties are banks with
good reputation.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group
are responsible for their own cash management,
including raising of loans to cover expected cash
demands, subject to approval by the board of
directors of the Company when the borrowings
exceed certain predetermined levels of authority.
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its short and long term liquidity
requirements.

At 31 December 2012, despite the fact that the
Group has a profit of HK$28,242,000 and net
current assets of HK$603,735,000, the Group has
current liabilities of approximately HK$86,183,000,
to be settled within the next twelve months from
the end of the reporting period, which exceed its
cash and cash equivalent of HK$33,265,000. The
Group is implementing a number of measures to
address the liquidity risk, and the directors of the
Company are satisfied that these measures can
provide sufficient funds to the Group to meet in full
its obligations when they fall due in the foreseeable
future. Details of these measures are set out in
note 2.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
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7.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 7. E®MIA(E)
Financial risk management objectives and MERKREEBNREER (&)
policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) BB (&)
The following table details the Group’s contractual TEREIAEB T ESHBECTE
maturity of its major financial liabilities. For financial HEamBHzFE REeREEM
liabilities, the table has been drawn up based on the T RRIBRBASEEREREEREZ
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based KFPEHzemEBERMRRENE
on the earliest date on which the Group can be R ZKREENERAEREN
required to pay. The table includes both interest and £

principal cash flows.

Over Over
Weighted 3months 6 months
average Not ~ butnot  butnot Total
interest On morethan more than more than Over undiscounted  Carrying

ratt demand 3 months 6 months 1 year Tyear  cashflow  amount
BEMEA EB6fAA
mEYE  REXE  FEE  ERER  BRER RERRE
RIZ R 3fAA 6f8A 1§ B@E  REAE  KEE
%  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HKS$'000 HK§'000  HK§'000
% TEr TEr TR TEn  TEn TEr  Tén

At 31 December 2012 R-E-CZE
TZA=t-H
Trade and other payables ~ EREZR
HAhJERFR - 15314 - - - - 15374 15374
Amounts due to non- LN
controlling shareholders — FFRMRRRZUE

of subsidiaries - 26,156 - - - - 26,156 26,156
Convertible notes TAREE 2352 = = = - 120,000 120,000 61,202
Other borrowings A - 19 - - - - 17191 17,191

58,721 - - - 120,000 178,121 119,923
At 31 December 2011 RZE——%
t-A=1-H
Trade and other payables ~ EREZ R
Hi MR - 32,620 - - - - 32,620 32,620
Amounts due to diectors ~ ERHERR
of subsidiaries EEE : 4388 - - = - 4,388 4,388

Amount due to non- EfMBLAA
controlling shareholders — SFETRRR A

of subsidiaries - 32,057 - - - - 32,057 32,057

Obligation under a RERNAE
finance lease 8.8 - 19 19 53 - 91 71
Convertible notes ARER 12.05 - - - 395,000 - 396,000 347,336
Other borrowings AffEE 7.0 - - 1,567 - - 1,567 1,523
69,065 19 158 396083 - 46673 418001
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Fair value
The fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined as follows:

o the fair value of financial assets with standard
terms and conditions and traded on active
liquid markets are determined with reference
to quoted market bid prices and ask price
respectively;

o the fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities (excluding derivative financial
instruments) is determined in accordance with
generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis; and

o the fair value of the embedded conversion
option and early redemption option of the
convertible notes are estimated using option
models and the inputs into the models are
disclosed in note 25.

Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to
3 based on the degree to which the fair value is
observable.

° Level 1 fair value measurements are those
derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active market for identical assets or liabilities.

° Level 2 fair value measurements are those
derived from inputs other than quoted prices
included within Level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BFE_FT——F1T_A=1—HIFE

7.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 7. &®IA#E)

Fair value (Continued) "‘SFE (%)

Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated R BRI R ERZ 2 FlEGE

statement of financial position (Continued) (#&)

. Level 3 fair value measurements are those e FE=RRTEFTEHBENLL
derived from valuation techniques that AR BRI EUE (T A8
include inputs for the assets or liabilities that RBASE) RER2EEN
are not based on observable market data BEZHASBZEHERNEG
(unobservable inputs). e

At 31 December 2012
R-E-Z§+-B=+—H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—-& -t F=H @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TER TER TER
Held-for-trading investments FIEEERE 25,185 - - 25,185
Financial liabilities at FVTPL BATFEA
BRZeRER
Embedded conversion ABREE
option and early ME AR B
redemption option of R B
convertible notes - - 73,492 73,492
At 31 December 2011
R-E——%+-A=+—H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E— E-Mm E=H st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET TET TET
Held-for-trading investments BHIEEERE 43,178 - - 43,178
Financial liabilities at FVTPL BAFERA
BazemaR
Embedded conversion CIEAES
option and early redemption  E A% HIHE |2
option of convertible notes REBEEEE - - 248,461 248,461
There were no transfers between level 1 and level 2 REAFERBEFE  F—HEF—
in the current and prior years. Az TN FE S A TR R ©
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7.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 7. £®MIA#E)
Fair value (Continued) DNYEHE(E)
Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated R E BRI KR 2\ FlEGTE
statement of financial position (Continued) (%)
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurement of TRBEZF=RAFEFTEYR
financial liabilities: LU
Embedded
derivatives of
convertible
notes
ARREEZ
AETETH
HK$
BTT
At 1 January 2011 Rn=—Z2—%F—H—H 484,425
Total gains or losses Wk BB B (235,964)
At 31 December 2011 RZE—F+=—A=+—H 248,461
Total gains or losses Wk BB BT (85,574)
Converted during the year FREH (157,293)
Issued during the year FNET 67,898
At 31 December 2012 RZE——F+=—_A=+—H 73,492

1 1 8 ANNUAL REPORT 2012 China New Energy Power Group Limited



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
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TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
Operating segments are identified on the basis
of internal reports about components of the
Group that are regularly reviewed by the chief
operating decision maker (“CODM") in order
to allocate resources to segments and to assess
their performance. Reported segment information
is based on internal management reporting
information that is regularly reviewed by executives
directors, being the CODM of the Group. The
measurement policies the Group used for segment
reporting are the same as those disclosed in note 4
above.

The Group’s operations are organised based on the
two business activities which also the information
regularly reported to the CODM. The details of
operating and reportable segments of the Group are
as follows:

o Investments in securities — trading of
securities;
o Property development — development of

properties held for sale.

The operation of timber business was discontinued
in 2011.

Turnover from investment in securities business
represents dividend income from held-for-trading
investments.

EXBERIBER
REDPBUAEERNLREERE
BRI BRAASEBEKNE S
CRENEHTIELERRE
EERRE]) BB A
REEDBRAFEERE - #
BEMDERATES (AIXE
EXELERRE) EMERM AR
EEMEER KEBH D EREFT
R 8ERE EXX K T4 KR
EHER -

N

okk
=

N

Kl

>

oS D AR

P B H
\
s

REE 7 S ERIFZMIAEREBA
B - ENRMEIBLERRET
HmEZER - Fitt - AEE 2 K=
KA EDBHBWAT

s BEFRE-RB/HEE;
e DEBR-BRF/ELEY

% o

AR EBEER T ——F&IE
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8. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

(a) Segment turnover and results
The following is an analysis of the Group’s

turnover and results by reportable and

operating segment.

For the year ended 31 December 2012

8.

EEBERIEER (&

(a) TEHERBERER
AT RAEERHREREED
BzERBAREDN

BRE-2--%+=5
=+-ALEE

Continuing operations

BREEERYR
Investment Property
in securities development Consolidated
BHERE MERR &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT TERT TERT
TURNOVER L
External sales HNEREHE 250 - 250
RESULT £ |
Segment result R E (17,801) (11,043) (28,844)
Unallocated corporate income AT HEREMRA 1,070
Unallocated corporate expenses AFAEARIFX (23,767)
Other gains and losses Hiples MR 98,756
Finance costs AN A (18,973)
Profit for the year REZHF 28,242
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AR M T
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TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

(a)

Segment turnover and results (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2011

8. EXERIEEHR (&)

(a)

Hz_22——%+ - A
=t+—HItFE

Discontinued

operation
Continuing operations BRIE
HELEETH B2k
Investment Property
in securities development Total Timber Consolidated
BERE  DERER aft AR#t A3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT THT FET THT TAT
TURNOVER EXE
External sales MRS E 125 - 125 76,556 76,681
RESULT £
Segment result GEEL (36,312) (7,925) (44,237) (86,317) (130,554)
Unallocated corporate income k¥ F A IKA 823 944 1,767
Unallocated corporate AFAEARAR
expenses (53,216) (2,012) (55,228)
Other gains and losses Hb s K g 235,964 21,477 257,441
Finance costs BEKK (39,849) (2,921) (42,770)
Profit (loss) for the year TERRN (B8) 99,485 (68,829) 30,656
The accounting policies of the operating & DM 2 &R IR BT R4
segments are the same as the Group's Ptz NE B &5 BURAR o
accounting policies described in note 4. DRERESIBZER R
Segment result represents loss from each AR RITHER) &
segment without allocation of central BHE - BMEAA - HMhias
administrative costs, directors’ salaries, finance IER (TEREFEEERE
costs, other gains or losses excluding the loss EiE - ZEBERBEHARFRE
from held-for-trading investments, which DHERE) - WARMEFELE
is included in the investment in securities REEETERAEBERSE
segment result. This is the measure reported MaHERIRZ AR -
to the CODM for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment.
REHERDHDEEERAR 2012 F8% 121
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

HEr—ZF——

Ft-_A=1—HIFE

8. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

(b)

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s
assets and liabilities by reportable operating
segments:

At 31 December 2012

8.

BEERIEER (&

(b) DEEERERE
T AAREERRELEDA
ZEERBED
R-E——-H+=ZHA=+—H

Continuing operations

BELEEK
Investment Property
in securities development Consolidated
BERE MERRE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT TER TR
ASSETS BE
Segment assets DEEE 25,185 610,669 635,854
Unallocated corporate assets ATABRAREE 62,494
Consolidated total assets BEEERS 698,348
LIABILITIES 8
Segment liabilities NEERE - 42,321 42,321
Unallocated corporate liabilities AIPEARARE 178,556
Consolidated total liabilities mEREAE 220,877
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PR —F——F+-_H="1—HIFZF
8. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 8. ®EHERIEER (&)
(Continued)
(b) Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) (b) PEEERAEE (£)
At 31 December 2011 WZZE——F+=-HA=+—H
Continuing operations

BEEEEH

Investment Property
in securities  development  Consolidated
EHFRE MEERE Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT

ASSETS &gE
Segment assets DEEE 43,178 576,810 619,988
Unallocated corporate assets R FHOERAIEE 72,667
Consolidated total assets e BEMRTE 692,655
LIABILITIES =C

Segment liabilities NERIE - 15,820 15,820
Unallocated corporate liabilities KFHEAFEE 670,166
Consolidated total liabilities FEBEER 685,986

The Group’s unallocated corporate assets at
the end of the reporting period mainly consist
of bank balances and cash and certain other
receivables and prepayments. The Group’s
unallocated corporate liabilities at the end
of the reporting period mainly consist of
amounts due to non-controlling shareholders
of subsidiaries, convertible notes, other
borrowings and certain other creditors and
accrued expenses.

AEERSMERERK ZAK
FTHERAREEETERIEIRT
R LIRE AN E T HM R
IR KR FANFIA - REERE
BEMERE 2R T HER A
BETERERNEB AR

ERR AR R 2 FRIE - AT ]AR R
B EHEMEBEURETEME
R ESTHY -
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8. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 8.
(Continued)

Other segment information

For the year ended 31 December 2012

(c)

ERERHEEN (4)

BEz-_ZFT--_+=-A
=t—BLFE

(c)

Continuing operations

RECERK
Investment Property
in securities development Unallocated Consolidated
RERE NERR ROE At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TERT
Information included in segment D% /DEEE
results/segment assets: &%Zﬁﬂ :
Additions to property, RENE  BEREE
plant and equipment - 167 56 223
Amortisation of prepaid lease ~ BNTBAFES
payments - - 117 117
Depreciation of property, % BERRERE
plant and equipment - 923 102 1,025
Net loss on held-for-trading EEEEREZFER
investments 17,993 - - 17,993
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8. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 8. SEBERIBER (&)

(Continued)
(c) Other segment information (Continued) () HtpEER (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2011 BHE-_ZT - —F+ A
=t+t—HIEFE
Discontinued
operation
Continuing operations BRI
Investment Property
in securities  development  Unallocated Total Timber  Consolidated
EERE  DEER ADE aft At EEl
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i i i TiET iR TR
Information included in DEEE /NERE
segment results/ Bz ER
segment assets:
Additions to property, RENE BRER
plant and equipment B - 964 341 1,305 - 1,305
Amortisation of prepaid BREOFEEH

lease payments - - 17 17 - 17

Depreciation of property, nE - BER

plant and equipment RENE - 836 204 1,040 - 1,040
Allowance for bad and REBRE

doubtful debts - - - - 21,412 21412
Allowance for inventories RERE - - - - 41,462 41,462
Deposits and prepayments &4 RFEM ZEM

written off - - - - 2,789 2,789
Net loss on held-for-trading ~ #{FEEREZ

investments FER 36,437 - - 36,437 - 36,437
Substantially all of the Group’s operations REENEBET 2 EANE

are located in the People’s Republic of China
("PRC") (country of domicile) and Hong Kong.

Included in the Group’s non-current assets are
amount of HK$170,000 (2011: HK$217,000)
of property, plant and equipment which are
located in Hong Kong and all the remaining
non-current assets are located in the PRC
(place of domicile of the group entities that
hold such assets).

Included in the Group’s turnover were
dividend income generated from investment in
securities and were derived from Hong Kong.

FEARLAME (THE)) (BE
B) R&EE e

AEEFERBDEEBRUNE
B AEE170,0008 T (==
— — 4 :217,000% 7T) 24
¥ BEEKEKE mMEtHEE
3'5/}“4@%?5'”15/\':?.(?#%
REERECEEERKERE
BZ) o

AEEEXHEBREFREE
EZREBA - TTEEER

7=|
& ®
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8. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

ERER S BAR (8)

(d) Information about major customers (d BBREEEFzEH
Turnover (included in discontinued operation) REBFEE  2X8 (B8HFC2
from customers of the corresponding years BIEREER) RS EEH
contributing 10% of the total sales of the BE10%2EFPIOT
Group are as follows:
2012 2011
—B——F —F——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Customer A' ZEEA N/A 14,807
TiEA
Customer B! 2B N/A 10,754
5
Customer C! 2RO N/A 8,119
T iE A
U Turnover from the timber segment which ! KEZE——FERIER
discontinued in 2011. BZARMDIE 2 &5 -
9.  OTHER INCOME HAb WA
Continuing Discontinued
operations operation Total
RFELEER DRIEREER CH]
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
“%--F %% Z%-=F %% %--F T F
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TET TET TET THT TER FHET
Interest income MEBA 1,012 774 - 944 1,012 1,718
Sales of scrap materials HMEEEMH - - - 2,136 - 2,136
Government grants BB
(note) (Hrit) - - - 1,906 - 1,906
Others Hip 58 49 - 1,135 58 1,184
1,070 823 - 62 1,070 6,944
Note: In 2011, the Government grants represented Biit - R ——F - BFEZIELAE

compensation received for expenditures incurred in
relation to energy saving and waste reduction for
the Group’s timber related business. There were
no unfulfilled conditions attached to these grants
and, therefore, the Group recognised the grants as
income upon receipts.

1 2 6 ANNUAL REPORT 2012 China New Energy Power Group Limited

1% 7 1 4 8 26 7% A &0 RE KRS P
EEZRASXBERMzME- ZF
1 Bh I B AROE R 2 P 5 R 1 - B
1tt 7K & B 7 W ER 93 5K B T LA B
ROAS A



NN Ed
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10. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 10. HttsEREE
Continuing Discontinued
operations operation Total
HELEXK BRIEEEXK At
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011

“F--F Z%F Z%--fF T F ZB-oF ZFF
HK$'000  HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TAn  TATL  TAR AT FER  TARX

Gain on derivative TR TA

financial instruments W (Hf7t25)

(note 25) 85,574 235,964 - - 85,574 235,964
Gain on disposal of HEMNBARZ

subsidiaries (note 13) W& (#f7#13) 24,215 - - 21,477 24215 21,477
Fair value changes RHIEEEREL

on held-for-trading ATEEE

investments (17,993) (36,437) - - (17,993) (36,437)

Loss on initial recognition & REERR
of convertible notes BEEEE

(note 25) (Hi725) (7,871) = - = (7.871) —
Loss on early redemption 1REE @ A[#
of convertible notes BEE 2 BB
(note 25) (Hit25) (3,162) = - - (3,162) —
80,763 199,527 - 21,477 80,763 221,004
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11.  FINANCE COSTS 11. BERK
Continuing Discontinued
operations operation(s) Total
RFELEER CDRIEREER CH]
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011

~B--F 2% Z%B--F % F ZB--F %%
HK$'000  HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Tén AT TAR AT FER  TAR

Interest on: THEBEZHE :
~ borrowings from - BREFER
banks and THEER
other financial ZHBITR
institutions wholly Hitr e #
repayable within KEEE
five years = - - 2,921 - 2,921
— other borrowings —HiEE 279 116 - - 279 116
Effective interest expense AR AFERNEH
on convertible notes fBE. A
wholly repayable BREREZ
within five years EBRHEERA 18,694 39,733 - - 18,694 39,733
18,973 39,849 - 2,921 18,973 42,770
12. TAXATION 12. HE
No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is made AR AR R RE R E A 5T ML 2 B
as the Company and its subsidiaries incorporated BARIRMEFESEERDEN
in Hong Kong have no assessable profits for both M RAIELE BB SR o
years.
No provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax made AR B M 2 BB A AR
as the subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC have no EFEHEERTAN - A EIEL
assessable profits for both years. R PTG TR o
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BFE - F——F+_H=+—HIFEF
12. TAXATION (Continued) 12.  BiE (&)
The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the ZIKEETRIEEEZ ZHEREKR AR
profit before taxation per the consolidated statement Al A ET BRI -
of comprehensive income as follows:
2012 2011
—E-CF —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHTT
Profit before taxation B 15 A AR
(from continuing operations) (REFEEEER) 28,242 99,485
Tax at the domestic income tax R A FTE IR E25%
rate of 25% (2011: 25%) (note) (ZZ——%F :25%)
B (Bat) 7,060 24,871
Tax effect of expenses not deductible AT 1T B 7 2 T 75 5 &
for tax purpose 7,381 17,492
Tax effect of income not taxable BAEGRIBAZ B2
for tax purpose (27,700) (59,171)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised REHRTIIBEEIB
MGz & 13,259 16,808

Taxation for the year (relating to
continuing operations)

E%ER)

FERE (ERFELE

Note: The domestic income tax rate of 25% (2011: 25%)
represents the PRC Enterprise Income Tax rate of
which the Group’'s operations are substantially
based.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
had unused tax losses of HK$290,877,000 (2011:
HK$272,991,000) available for offset against future
profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams.
Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses of
HK$2,760,000 (2011: HK$3,201,000) that will
expire up to 2017 (2011: 2016). Other losses can be
carried forward indefinitely. During the year ended
31 December 2012, tax losses of HK$35,150,000
were disposed upon disposal of TGT Group (see note

13(a)).

Hiat - BRATIS R E25% (ZF ——
F25%) BAEB KNI D EE

HRAZHPBREMAEHRE -

R ERERE  XEBBARAH
T8 /&5 18290,877,0008 T (= & —
— 4 :272,991,000/ jT) A] K 4
RHE F o R R BE BRI R 2K 4 A
ME - WES EAHIEBERRE
EHIBEE AERREEBERRE
2,760,000 T 2 BB (ZF — —
F :3,201,0008 L) ZEBR =

T—LF(CE——F —FT—A
F) BIH - it RBIRL T m AR A
B-BE-T-—#t-A=1—~

IHEE - AHETGT Group (RHIEE
13(a)) 1% & & i 78 &5 1835, 150,000
BT o

B
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13. DISCONTINUED OPERATION/DISPOSAL OF

SUBSIDIARIES

(a) Disposal of TGT Holdings Corporation
(“TGT"”) and other subsidiaries (the “2012
Disposal”)
On 31 January 2012, the Group entered into
an agreement with Barstow Holdings Limited
(“Barstow”), a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands, to dispose all of its
entire interests in Ta Fu Strategic Investment
Limited, TGT and its subsidiaries, Fulbond
Business Services Limited and Fulbond Digital
Systems Limited (collectively known as the
“TGT Group”).

Barstow is an independent third party of
the Group. The 2012 Disposal was approved
by the Board of Directors of the Company
and completed on 31 January 2012. Total
consideration for the 2012 Disposal was
HK$35 in cash.

The profit for the period from disposal of
subsidiaries is analysed as follows:

13. BRILEKEXK HEWBAR

(a) HETGT Holdings Corporation
(ITGT)) RE KM & A &
(=B—-—FHEFHE])
WRZE——F—A=+—8"
N £ [ E2Barstow Holdings
Limited ([Barstow] * — X %
EERXBESEMKLIZA
a) Rl WEEER
Ta Fu Strategic Investment
Limited, TGTR H M B 2 &
Fulbond Business Services
Limited X Fulbond Digital
Systems Limited (# & [TGT
Groupl) 2 &= Ef#Eas -

Barstow A AN E B 2 B E =
FHe ZE—_FHEFRHEER
REIBEEGHAETHN T —=
F—AZt+—HEK - _T—
“FHESBE RELBARE
©3587T °

KB HE M B ARz B A
DR

1.1.2012 to
31.1.2012
—E-=F
—H—HBZ%
—EB-—F

—HA=+—H
HK$’000
FHET

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

HEMB ARz W 24,215
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-ZFZF+ZA=1T—HAUFE
13. DISCONTINUED OPERATION/DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(a) Disposal of TGT Holdings Corporation
("TGT"”) and other subsidiaries (the 2012
Disposal”) (Continued)

Analysis of assets and liabilities of the TGT
Group at the date of disposal was as follows:

idated Financial Statements

ERLEREXE HEWE QA

/425
(A5 )

(a)

13.

HHETGT Holdings Corporation
(ITGT)) REMHE 2 =
(=Z2—=—FHESRE]) (&)
TGTEEREEBRHZEER
BESTAT :

31.1.2012
—E——-F
—HB=+—H
HK$’000
FERT
Other debtors and prepayments b=l A E QPN EE R O] 735
Other payables H fh JE N RKIB (18,221)
Amounts due to the Company e AR B FRIE (605,832)
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries FEAT R R MY B A RIFRIE (8.856)
Amounts due to non-controlling JE 1~ BT BB R B FEFE AR
shareholders of subsidiaries IRER 2 FRIE (7.490)
(639,664)
Less: Non-controlling interests W IR IR R 761
Net liabilities disposed of FILE8ETE - (638,903)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries: HENB ARz K
Consideration received EWRKE =
Net liabilities disposed of P E8EFE 638,903
Assignment to Barstow of amounts M Barstows ;%
due to the Company JEAT AR RIFRIE (605,832)
Assignment to Barstow of amounts [MBarstow3 ;% FE 1<
due to the Company’s subsidiaries RNR R B A RIFIA (8.856)
Gain on disposal & s 24,215

During the period from 1 January 2012 to
31 January 2012, the TGT Group had no
contribution to the Group’s cash flows.

BT —F—H—HZE=-F
- i S el ST
TGTREEHARB  BHERE
WA RS -
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE _FT——F1 _A=1—HIFE

13. DISCONTINUED OPERATION/DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
(b) Disposal of timber operation
On 18 November 2011, the Group entered
into an agreement with Intelligence
International Limited (the “Purchaser”), a
company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands, to dispose all of its entire interests in
Wood Art International Corporation (”Wood
Art”) and its subsidiaries (the “Disposal
Group”), which carried out all of the Group’s
timber operation (the “2011 Disposal”). The
Purchaser is an independent third party of
the Group. The Disposal was approved by the
shareholders of the Company and completed
on 29 December 2011. Total consideration for
the 2011 Disposal amounted to HK$100,000.

The loss for the period from discontinued
operation is analysed as follows:

13. BRALERKEXE HEWELR

(4&)

(b) HEARMEL
RZE——F+—A+N
H: KX & Ed|ntelligence
International Limited ([ &
Hl —HREBEZESF
iz AaE) FTS ek
& E M Wood Art International
Corporation ([Wood Art]) &
EffB e ([HESE] -
i““K*l%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂ)
2EHEE ([20MFHES
BH]) BRANEBZBALE
=H c HESFHEHDEARRAR
BHfAEIER -_T——F+=
AZ+RABZREK 20115 H
EEH KRBT /100,000

BT e

KEERIEREER ZHAE
Bofn T

1.1.2011 to
29.12.2011
—E—%F
—HA—HB=%
—E——%F
+=—A=+NH
HK$'000
FETT

Loss of timber operation for the year
Gain on disposal of timber operation

FARARMES 2 BB (90,306)
BB ARM 1 2 Wz 21,477

(68,829)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

BE_F——F1_H=1—HIFE
13. DISCONTINUED OPERATION/DISPOSAL OF  13. RIEREXKE HEWE QA
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) (#)
(b) Disposal of timber operation (Continued) (b) HERMER (&)
The results of the Disposal Group for the HEEEH-_T——F—H—
period from 1 January 2011 to 29 December E_E——F+ZHAZ+h
2011, which have been included in the E%FﬁZ%ﬁ (BEtA&RE R
consolidated statement of comprehensive HARmEAR 2T BERIEL
income and presented as discontinued EEB) T
operation were as follows:
1.1.2011 to
29.12.2011
—H—HZE
—T——f
+-A=+AhB8
HK$'000
FATT
Turnover XL 76,556
Cost of sales SHE KA (116,453)
Gross loss £ (39,897)
Other income H WA 6,121
Selling and distribution costs HERDIHER (6,514)
Administrative expenses TIRE A (22,894)
Other expenses HEMH (24,201)
Finance costs & P A (2,921)
Loss for the period HAfE 518 (90,306)
Loss for the period attributable to: HREEEGE S -
Owners of the Company ZAN/NEL (63,202)
Non-controlling interests JEPE R 2 (27,104)
(90,306)
During the year 2011, the Disposal Group He—E2——FF HEEFH
contributed cash outflow of HK$45,681,000 AREEYKLIES Re
to the Group’s net operating cash flows, cash = B R 145,681,000 7T 15
inflow of HK$944,000 in respect of investing 2 KBEITH I HEERAL
activities and cash outflow of HK$2,921,000 944,000 Tt R B E# 2 IR
in respect of financing activities. &t A2,921,0008 T ©
HK$'000
FHET
Consideration received: ERIE :
Cash consideration BERE 100
FEMERDNEEERAA 2012 F% 133
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‘e MBI
For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE _FT——F1 _A=1—HIFE

13. DISCONTINUED OPERATION/DISPOSAL OF 13.

ERLEREXLE HEWE QA

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) (&)

(b)

HERMEL (&)
HESERNHERMZEER
BESWTWT -

Disposal of timber operation (Continued) (b
Analysis of assets and liabilities of the Disposal
Group at the date of disposal was as follows:

29.12.2011
—T——%F
TZRAZ+ANH
HK$'000
FHET
Property, plant and equipment VI - BB R -
Prepaid lease payment TEREAFIA -
Interests in associates N A= WNCIR =
Inventories FE 21,028
Trade and other receivables JE U R K EL Ath B W R IE 29,643
Bank balances and cash RITEHR KRS 23,138
Total assets BEE 73,809
Trade and other payables JE A& R K ELAth B 5 5RIB 30,261
Amount due to ultimate holding company  JEN SRR A TRIE 116,450
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries ANIEES VNGBS 296,399
Amount due to an associate FETEsE & R R IR 3,426
Bank borrowings RITEE 80,658
Tax payable JENTIE 2,672
Total liabilities HAEE 529,866
(456,057)
Less: Non-controlling interests W SETERRAE A 21,831
Net liabilities disposed of FrHEaEFE (434,226)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries: HERBAR W
Consideration received and receivable B R ERRE 100
Net liabilities disposed of FILEaR/FE 434,226
Assignment to Purchaser of amount M8 7 EEN
due to ultimate holding company AT R RIFIA (116,450)
Assignment to Purchaser of amounts EEVEEET3M]
due to fellow subsidiaries EES NGRS (296,399)
Gain on disposal & s 21,477
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HEMEA RS RLIFE
Cash consideration EE R 100
Cash and cash equivalent disposed of FItEvHe MReEMEEE (23,138)
(23,038)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

BE-ZFZF+ZA=1T—HAUFE
14. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 14. FEFEERF
Continuing Discontinued
operations operation Total
BESEEY BRLEEER CH
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
“®--f “T——F -“B--f “F——F ZB-ZF “T——F
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TR TR THERL T TR THT
Profit for the year has been arrived KEEGH
at after charging: BHERTHIRE
Directors' and managing director's EEREERLE
remuneration (note ¢) e (Hritc)
- Fees -84 3,506 3,279 - - 3,506 3,279
- Salaries and other benefits -HeRAMEN 1,770 1,751 - - 1,770 1,751
- Bonus -t 2,343 415 - - 2,343 415
- Other emoluments - B 5 M 98 85 - - 98 85
1M 5530 - - 5530
Employees' salaries and benefits EEFERETRX
expenses 3,901 3,749 - 12,156 3,901 15,905
Retirement benefits scheme ﬁ?%?’)\\ E&Z
contributions for staff other than RIVEME BT
directors (note d) (Hitd) 143 118 - 1,422 143 1,540
Total staff costs BIKER 11,761 9,397 - 13578 1761 22,975
Allowance for bad and doubtful debts ~ FEERE(E (A
(included in other expenses) (note )~ E %)
(With) - - - 2412 - 21412
Allowance for inventories (included in ~ FE#E (Gt A
cost of sales) (note a) HEKA)
(Hiita) - - - 41,462 - 41462
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments T4 IBEH 17 17 - - 117 17
Auditor's remuneration BEAME 1,000 1,580 - - 1,000 1,580
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses  BREFAAR S 2
BERE - - - 74,991 - 74,991
Deposits and prepayments written off  #i$4iR 4 kB[ U8
(included in other expenses) (GrAHfR)
(note b) (Hiith) - - - 2,789 - 2,789
Depreciation of property, nE- BER
plant and equipment RERE 1,025 1,040 - E 1,025 1,040
Minimum lease payments under operating 5B EW ¥ 2 £%
leases in respect of rented premises HAZERS AR 1,625 1,556 - 99 1,625 1,655
Project management fee (includedin ~ JBEEREE (G A
other expenses) (note e) EthE%)
(Write) - 23,000 - - - 23,000
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

idated Financial Statements

BE _FT——F1 _A=1—HIFE
14. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (Continued) 14. XFEHN (£)

Notes: Brat -

(a) In the year ended 31 December 2011, a PRC (a) BE_T—F+ZH=+—H
subsidiary of the Group which carried out the IEFE - AEE—BEHEAME
Group’s timber operation purchased excessive BZHRBENBARBABSZE
inventories and certain inventories were produced B -MEfEEzETEFEAS
but could not be sold due to the weakened market BHEFEEmAEER - Bt
demand, as a result, the directors of the Company KRAREZEOHZEFENRED
made allowances of HK$41,462,000 on these 41,462,000/8 o2 BB B B m
inventories and were charged to profit or loss. FRHIBR -

(b)  In the year ended 31 December 2011, the directors b) EHEz—ZTZ——F+-_A=+—H
of the Company conducted a review of its trade IEEE  AARES YR AR
receivables and certain deposits and prepayments WEH BTk RBEMFTIER
were long outstanding and not recoverable, BMAYNAERTKE - Bt 2
as a result, allowances of HK$21,412,000 and Bired 2 ERE R NGB BN
HK$2,789,000, respectively, were charged to the HD RIEH 221,412,000 7T &
consolidated statement of comprehensive income. 2,789,000/ 7T 2 B o

(c) Directors’ and managing director’s emoluments (0 EEZRESERECHFHRES
and highest paid employees FES
(i) The emoluments paid or payable to each (i) ENENSESERES

of the directors and the managing director FERCS L)
were as follows:
Directors
£
Ip Kwan Wah
Cheng Catherine  Yeung Chiu Kam Hung, Wang Kei, Chen Ma  Leung Yu Wu lee Zhang  Yeung Fei
Kuong Chen  Kwok Yu Kong  Jimmy  Jackie Guanglin  YinFan HoiYing Pan ZhuoTong’ MingTung™  Xi** Tsoi San™*  Phillip™* Total
X RE%  RER BE  OBEX  ERE REN  FRS  RHE TR Ry THE" REY BEEM Rde &3t
HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00 HKS'000 HKSO00 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKSO00 HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000 HKS'000 HKSQ00  HKS'000  HK$000
Tén Térn Thn TEn TEx  TEx  TExr TEx TEr TR THEr THr TEn  TEn  TEn TEn
For the year ended ~ EHZ
31 December 2012 —B-CE
t=A
=t
LEE
Fees i 600 650 ) - -0 w0 100 7 - B6 30 60 3506
Salaries and other benefits 4 R £t %) - 910 260 600 - - - - - - - - - - - 1,770
Bonus (note) ) - w1 10 100 10 - - - - - - 180 - -
Share-based payments R 2
Retirement benefits ~ R{KiER3tEl
scheme contributions {431 - 28 12 28 - - 14 - - - - - 5 1 4 98
600 731 3 138 100 100 44 180 100 100 7 I TR TR ¥ 11
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE_F——F1_H=1—HIFE

14. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (Continued) 14. XFEHR (F)
Notes: (Continued) Hiat - (&)
(c) Directors’ and managing director’s emoluments (c) BEENESHARB FNRES
and highest paid employees (Continued) FEB (&)

(i) The emoluments paid or payable to each (i) ENkENSEERES
of the directors and the managing director MBISIR 7 FHBNN T - (4B)
were as follows: (Continued)

Directors
g2
Ip Kwan Wah Hong
Cheng  Catherine Yeung Chiu Kam Hung,  Wang Kei, Chen Ma Leung Yu lee  PoKu, Zhang Yeung Fei
Kuong™ Chen  Kwok Yu Kong Jimmy Jackie  Guangln  YinFan  Hoi Ying Pan SunMan®#  Martin® X TooiSan™  Phillip™  Total
EEx  REX 5ER B OBRE  ETE OREN BRX B TR ZER™ RER O RE BENC A% g
HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$000
Tér TEnr  TEr  TEr  TEx  FEx  TEr  TEr  FTEr TEr TEr TEr TiEn Thr T TEn
For the year ended HE-Z—-f£
31 December 2011 +-B=1-8
I3
Fees ik 303 650 - 600 - - 30 180 100 100 - 120 650 303 433219
Salaries and other benefits %4 R £ thig%] - 891 260 600 = = = = = = o = = = e
Bonus T - 115 100 100 100 - - - - - - - - - -5
Share-based payments Wil 2508 - - - - - - - - - - - _ _ _ _ _
Retiement benefits ~ RIFERIEt B/t
scheme contributions - 214 12 24 - - 1 - - - - - 1 6 6 85
303 1,680 3n 1324 100 - 31 180 100 100 - 120 662 309 249 5530
Note: Bt -

The bonus paid to Mr. Zhang Xi during the
year ended 31 December 2012 is determined
on a one off basis approved by the board of
directors.

Ms. Catherine Chen is also the managing
director of the Company and her
emoluments disclosed above include those
for services rendered by her as the managing
director.

The director was appointed on May
2012.

The director was appointed on
December 2012.

The directors were appointed in 2011.

*k

i The directors were resigned in 2011.

e The director was resigned on May
2002,

g The director was resigned on April
20094

###  The director was resigned on July
204128

####  The director deceased in 2011.

REE_ZT——F+_A
=t+—HIEFEMRREL
ET S 2 A TR — R
HELEESHEMET °

BRESZLMABARRARZ

BEAKE . N EXAH

EETHRERIEAE

= AR A 1 12 1 AR 7% P U B

j,éo

' ZEER-_ZT—=
FHAEZMT-

“ FEER_FT—=
F+_AERMT-

o HEER_T——
FHERT-

i REERNR_T——
FF/EE o

2 ZEER_T—
FHABME -
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BB HmRMN

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-F

(c)

——FtZH=1—HIFFE

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (Continued) 14. AFEEF (&)
Notes: (Continued) Bzt (&)

Directors’ and managing director’s emoluments () ESRESHELREZTFMRES

and highest paid employees (Continued) ¥EE (&)

(ii) Of the five individuals with the highest (ii) EREB RN & H M
emoluments in the Group, three (2011: ALtH: = (Z&——
three) were directors and the managing F:=) ERARFE
director of the Company whose emoluments EREFBLE - HEHT
are included in the disclosures above. The B ENHEE - HBmA
emoluments of the remaining two (2011: (ZF2——F : M) AT
two) individuals are as follows: ZEBEEEAOT

2012 2011

—F-=F —E——F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Salaries, bonus and other benefits aitf?/i\ TEA M EAb @ F 1,552 1,826
Retirement benefit scheme RIRAEFET B R

contributions 28 27

1,580 1,853

(d)

Included in the above is one (2011: one)
individual of which the emolument falls
within HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
band, while the remaining one (2011: one)

individual does not exceed HK$1,000,000.

Retirement benefits schemes

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
scheme for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong.
The assets of the scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in funds under the control of
trustees. The Group contributes 5% of relevant
payroll costs to the scheme, which contribution is
matched by employees but subject to a maximum
amount of HK$1,250 (for the year ended 31
December 2011 and up to May 2012: HK$1,000)
per month from June 2012 onwards for each
employee.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE_F——F1_H=1—HIFE

14.

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Retirement benefits schemes (Continued)

In addition, pursuant to government regulations,
for the Group's employees in the PRC, relevant
subsidiaries are required to contribute amounts
ranging from approximately 14% to 30% of the
basic staff wages to certain retirement benefit
schemes. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the retirement benefits schemes is to
make the specified contribution.

Project management fee

On 29 November 2010, Allywing Investments
Limited (“Allywing”), a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Group, entered into a Management Agreement
with Harvest Day Limited (“Harvest Day”) pursuant
to which Harvest Day agreed to provide professional
management and consultancy services to Allywing
in relation to the property development project
which the Group is currently developing properties
for sale (see note 18). Ms. Zhang Hua Fang, sister
of Mr. Zhang Xi, Joint Chairman of the Company
who resigned on 21 May 2012, holds 60% equity
interests in Harvest Day.

The fee under the Management Agreement is
HK$50,000,000, payable in 3 instalments by the
Group upon certain milestones being achieved in
the property development project.

Pursuant to the Management Agreement, the

installments are payable by the Group as follows:

(i) First installment: HK$23,000,000 being 46%
of the total management fee and payable
within 15 days after the effective date of the

Management Agreement;

14.

idated Financial Statements

KEFRF ()
Wizt - (&)

(d)

(e)

ERBREE (&)

UEoh - REBBUFHR O - SRS E
ZENEEMES - BEAMERF
AR H TRNRERE & E D H#®
o HMRENTFERE THHA
14%%E30% ° AN EEF R
BNEE s —BEERELEETE

K

HEERE
RZZE—ZTF+—HA=+hA-
AEB2EWNBARERKESR
PRAR ([8RF]) BBEERAA
([BL )Ty —1ERRE - &
b AEREMmMEFREEAE
ERERABUAEEEYE (R
H18) ZMEHREEBMZE
¥EBRFEARY - NATHE
FERELE (RZE—Z=-FH
AZ+— BB ) CHRKERERS
ZREHYEZ60%%H

B N2 E A A50,000,000
B BHAEBERYEZRRIA
Bk e TEERERZSIPX
o

BEEEHS  AEBENDH
FRIBIE
(i) % — Hi:23,000,000

AL MEBEERBEL
46% * B E R WL
HEAR1SEHA T ¢

FEFRERDHOEEARAT 2012 % 139



m

EE_

14.

BB HmRMN

For the year ended 31 December 2012

T —A=1—HILFE

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(e)

Project management fee (Continued)

(i) Second installment: HK$13,500,000 being
27% of the total management fee and
payable within 15 days after the issue
of certificate of approval for presale of

#F Al &%)

(the “Second Installment Condition”);

commodities premises (& mEBE

(iii) Third installment: HK$13,500,000 being
27% of the total management fee and
payable within 15 days after issue of
certificates of compliance confirming
completion of all construction works in
the development project and settlement
of accounts (which have been audited
by independent third parties) with all
contracting parties (the “Third Installment

Condition").

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the first
installment amounting to HK$23,000,000 was paid
by the Group and was charged to profit or loss as,
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
management and consultancy service relating to the
first installment has been fulfilled. No payment was
made and charge to profit or loss during the year
ended 31 December 2012 as, in the opinion of the
directors of the Company, no related management
and consultancy services was rendered by Harvest
Day in the current year and the Second Installment
Condition has not been fulfilled.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE—F——F+ - A=1+—HIFZF
15. EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE 15. BREF (FHE)
For continuing and discontinued operations FEREXEBROCRLEREXER
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings RABREREEERERREEZF
(loss) per share attributable to owners of the (B8 DERUTERGE :
Company is based on the following data:
2012 2011
—EB-—C—F —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAETT
Earnings (loss): BF (Eﬂﬁ) :
Earnings for the purpose of FEUGTEERER
basic earnings per share ﬂﬂzﬁﬁﬂ 32,659 60,886
Effect of dilutive potential BREBTEELE
ordinary shares:
— Interest on convertible notes — A RREEF S 18,694 39,733
— Net gain on derivative —{THEe@MI AL
financial instruments F U AR (77,703) (235,964)
— Loss on early redemption of — RFREO#®
convertible notes REE 2 EE 3,162 -
Loss for the purpose of diluted loss HUGTESREEEE Y
per share =gk (23,188) (135,345)
Number of shares: BoE8
2012 2011
—E-=F —T——F
(Restated)
(&)
Weighted average number of ordinary E AT ESFREKREF)
shares for purposes of calculation of  (E518) 2 E@A%
basic earnings (loss) per share hniE 98 1,711,688,004 1,141,073,220
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary AR ER 2

BB T EY 90,163,934

umm

shares in respect of convertible notes 990,000,000

Weighted average number of FEUAGTESREEEIE .
ordinary shares for the purpose T AR N 9 8

of calculation of diluted loss

per share 1,801,851,938 2,131,073,220
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE _FT——F1 _A=1—HIFE

15. EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE (Continued) 15.
From continuing operations
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings
(loss) per share from continuing operations

BRA

7 (&8]) (&)
REFHEESERK
ARARREERELEEHEBRE
AREERN (BER) DERATE

attributable to the owners of the Company is based BEtE -
on the following data:
2012 2011
—B-CF —E——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FH&IT
(Restated)
(&%)
Earnings for the year attributable to AR GIIREENL
owners of the Company REE R 32,659 60,886
Less: Loss for the year from B AREREEMLELR
discontinued operation IEEEEEARFE
attributable to owners Z B8
of the Company - (41,725)
Earnings for the purpose of U EREREER
basic earnings per share from ERELRZF 2 BT
continuing operations 32,659 102,611
Effect of dilutive potential BREBTEETE
ordinary shares:
— Interest on convertible loan notes — AR EREEFNE 18,694 BIVEE
— Net gain on derivative —TEEMIALZ
financial instruments R (77,703) (235,964)
— Loss on early redemption of — REEO#®
convertible notes BEE 2 B8 3,162 -
Loss for the purpose of diluted loss BEUGTESBELER
per share from continuing operations &% EE B 2 18 (23,188) (93,620)

The denominators used are the same as those
detailed above for both basic and diluted earnings
(loss) per share.
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15.

EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE (Continued)

The weighted average number of ordinary shares
for the purpose of calculating basic and diluted
earnings (loss) per share for the year ended 31
December 2011 have been retrospectively adjusted
for the effect of share consolidation completed on
12 October 2012.

From discontinued operation

No basic or diluted earnings per share for discounted
operation for the year ended 31 December 2012 as
the Group has had no discontinued operation for
the year.

Basic loss per share for the discontinued operation
for the year ended 31 December 2011 was HK3.66
cent per share, based on the loss for the year
from the discontinued operation attributable to
owners of the Company of HK$41,725,000 and
the denominator is detailed above for basic loss per
share. Diluted loss per share for the discontinued
operation for the year ended 31 December 2011
was HK1.96 cents and the denominator as detailed
above for diluted loss per share.

The computation of diluted loss per share for the
years ended 31 December 2011 does not assume the
exercise of the Company’s outstanding share options
as the exercise price of those options is higher than
the average market price for shares during both
years. It does not assume the conversion of 2012 CN
Convertible Notes for the year ended 31 December
2012 since their assumed conversion would result in
a decrease in the loss per share.

15.

idated Financial Statements

SREF (B#R) (4)
HE-2-——#T-A=t+—AIt%
ARG EEREAREERT (B
18) B DIAETE S BB A SR =
T —F+A+-ARRORHA Y
HF BRI -

RECKRILEREXRK
BE-ZT——H+_A=1+—HL*HF
B BERIEREEHBTESRERK
wERN  DRAKERZFELE
BERIEREER -

BE-_ZT——F+-_A=+—HItHF
B BERIEREEB 2 BREREE
BER3.66/E - TIIREARD AR
REMERIEKEER 2 ANFEEE
41,725,000 7T & Lt & IR E A&
Beoit8E -BE-_T—F+=
A=Z+—BLEFE  BRIEKEER
2 BREEEEA1.9678 - A NIE
T EREEEE s HEEE -

MREE-_E—F+=ZA=+—H
IHFEZERRENTEERSRNRSD
EHTE @ WErEMEFERNZFRK
BEEBT TMREARAMAITEZ
BIREESITE T ERREHE=Z
——F+ - A=+t HILEEEHK
2012 MR ER - BAREEBR K
BHREREERD -
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE _FT——F1 _A=1—HIFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. ¥ - BERRE
Furniture
Leasehold  Plant and and Motor
Buildings improvement  equipment fittings vehicles Total
BT HENEEE RBERRE HARRE "E ]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THEL THEL TR TR TET
COST RAE
At 1 January 2011 RZE——%
—A—H 83,484 2,706 333,410 742 9,632 429,974
Currency realignment BiEEY| 3,606 84 14,403 54 365 18,512
Additions #E - 437 - 246 622 1,305
Elimination on disposal of PEEMRB AR
subsidiaries (note 13) Hi (Hit13) (87,090) - (347813 (74) (7917)  (442,894)
At 31 December 2011 RZE——F
T-A=1-H - 3,227 - 968 2,702 6,897
Currency realignment S5 - 1 - - 1 2
Additions BE - - - 223 - 223
Disposal HeE = = = (35) = (35)
At 31 December 2012 RZE-——F
+-A=1-H - 3,228 - 1,156 2,703 7,087
DEPRECIATION ik
At 1 January 2011 WZE——F
—A—H 83,484 571 333,410 384 8,402 426,251
Currency realignment BB S5 3,606 7 14,403 8 358 18,382
Provided for the year AEERE = 409 = 184 447 1,040
Elimination on disposal of R EMB LA
subsidiaries (note 13) i (H#13) (87,090) - (347,813) (74) (7917)  (442,894)
At 31 December 2011 RZE——F
+-A=t+-H - 987 - 502 1,290 2,779
Currency realignment EHE]| - 1 - - - 1
Provided for the year KEERE - 312 - 282 431 1,025
Elimination on disposal NHER $ - - - (35) - (35)
At 31 December 2012 RZE-—F
T-A=t-H - 1,300 - 749 1,721 3,770
CARRYING VALUES FHE
At 31 December 2012 N Eas
== B - 1,928 - 407 982 3,317
At 31 December 2011 M
145 = 4 H - 2,240 - 466 1,412 4,118
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

17.

The above items of property, plant and equipment
are depreciated on a straight line basis and the rates
per annum are as follows:

16.

M- BERRE (&)
HiE - BB MEREEBIRERA
& FASERET :

Rate per
annum (%)

FE(%)

Buildings on land held under short term

I RE B A MR AR5 2 FR AR 4

Over the lease term

leases outside Hong Kong BEZ T EZEF of 5 to 10 years
SE10FHHEEA

Plant and equipment and B REREA R AHES 10 to 33
furniture and fittings 10233
Motor vehicles RE 20

Leasehold improvement are depreciated over the
remaining unexpired terms of the leases or five
years, whichever is shorter.

At 31 December 2011, the net book value of motor
vehicles of HK$139,000 (2012: nil) in respect of
assets held under finance leases.

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS
The Group’s prepaid lease payments comprise
medium term lease in the PRC and are amortised
over the term of the leases.

17.

MEMERENSH T RERENLA
F (ARKEERE) AFE -

RZE——F+=-HA=+—H B#
BEREMAOMSEEZ ABZER
A FE139,0008 L (ZF— 4 :
') o

AN R B S
AREBZENEORBERERTEZ
R A0 R4 S AR B 5
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18. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 18. BEPYE
Properties under development are situated in the BRPUELNPEATT RERE
Xian City, the PRC and are held for sales after BEFFERE - NG HHERKER
completion. The properties under development R EEREETRE RN _ZEHNFEE
at the end of the reporting period represents 2 b {PE FRREFTEE A 2 BB o
development costs incurred for construction and TEZFIEENmERERE T @
land use rights for terms expiring in year 2048. The RAREIR -
amount is expected to be realised within 12 months
after the end of the reporting period.
19. HELD-FOR-TRADING INVESTMENTS 19. HEEERE
Held-for-trading investments represent equity FIEEBEREENRE A LT 2RAE
securities listed in Hong Kong. % o
Fair values are determined with reference to quoted REEDN2ERBMSEABEE °
market bid prices.
20. OTHER RECEIVABLES 20. HbEWRKIE
2012 2011
—E——F —E——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAETT
Other receivables = A e ] 656 297
Consideration receivable for disposal HERRINI K&
of food processing and DIHFEEREKKE
distribution operation 13,354 25,000
14,010 25,297

The consideration receivable for disposal of
Prowealth Holdings Group Limited and its
subsidiaries, carrying interest of 6% per annum was
due in July 2011. Further arrangement has been
made with Sincerity Shine to extend the repayment
of the remaining outstanding consideration to May
2013 and the other terms remain unchanged.
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20. OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 20. HtEWRIE (&)
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts REREZED
2012 2011
—E-F —FE——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
At beginning of the year FH) - 10,529
Impairment loss recognised BB W TR IEFE R
on receivables REEE - 21,412
Eliminated on disposal of subsidiaries RHEEHTE RN AR i - (31,941)
At end of the year FR - -
Included in the other receivables are the following FENE T Fe FA FE W SR IB B 48 T 51 LA
amounts denominated in currencies other than the *BF%'%IE‘&EZUJ%%MM%ZE%
functional currency of the group entities to which HEE e
they relate:
2012 2011
—E--F —T—%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Hong Kong Dollars BT 13,848 25,090
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21. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 21. SRITHEKRRE
Bank balances and cash comprise cash and short- fﬁﬁ *ﬁ?&fﬁﬁ BiERe RREIEA
term bank deposits with original maturity of three ERHPR = A 2R ERITIF
months or less, and carry interest ranging from i%l@z%om%im% (ZF——
0.01% to 0.4% (2011: 0.01% to 0.5%) per annum. F:0.01%%0.5%) °
At 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011, RZB——F+_A=t—HBRZ=ZF
the Group had bank balances and cash that were —F+ZA=1+—H8 XEEBEMNUA
in RMB, which is not freely convertible into other RERBE2RTHESKRIREDRINRE
currencies or were subject to exchange controls in 4,009,500/% 7T %88,000/8 7T + I~ A]
the PRC amounting to approximately HK$4,009,500 B B H A E A B s A X R B SN E
and HK$88,000, respectively. EHIFTRER -
Included in the bank balances and cash are the RITHEHBR LA BRETYIAEBEEE
following amounts denominated in currencies other = ézlﬁﬁﬁﬁl@ﬁﬁ?b(?l\ EMstEZz®
than the functional currency of the group entities to )
which they relate:
2012 2011
—E-——F ===
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHT
Hong Kong Dollars BT 29,004 16,287
22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 22. EBNERKRHEMEMNFIE
2012 2011
—E-——F —E——%F
HK$000 HK$'000
TET FET
Trade payables FERTE R = 4,885
Amount due to former director of FERTMT B A BIRTE S FA
a subsidiary 5,512 5,469
Accrued expenses FEETF 2,341 1,489
Accrued costs for construction work — FEFHESE T2 A 25,121 14,383
Other payables (note) HE A RIE () 9,862 25,918
42,836 52,144
Note: Other payables mainly comprise of loan payable Kiat  EWENZREBETESEEMNIK
to a former shareholder, loan interest payable and RHNER -  ENEZFE RTERK

receipt in advance from sub-contractors.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
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22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued) 22. BRAEFRREAMBEMNIER

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables PSR 5 HA A TR B - JEHT’?TA JINEEES
based on invoice date at the end of the reporting HERZ BRER DTN T -

period:

2012 2011

—E--F —E2——%F

HK$'000 HK$'000

THERT FHT

More than 180 days HiB180H - 4,885

e B N HE b T SRIR B4R T HIA
RSB ER e BB AN G HET

Included in the trade and other payables are the
following amounts denominated in currencies other

. | H2SH
than the functional currency of the group entities to
which they relate:
2012 2011
—E-CfF —B——

HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT THETT
Hong Kong Dollars BT 7,805 16,215

23. AMOUNTS DUE TO DIRECTORS OF 23. Efﬂﬁ%ﬁ?é% R8PS

SUBSIDIARIES/AMOUNTS DUE TO NON- DA FERBRERR

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The amount(s) due to directors of subsidiaries and FERMBARESRIEREMNHER
non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries are AIFEIERR R NI EER 2B KA
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. JEESRER

REHERDHEEERAR 2012 F% 149



NN Ed

For the year ended 31 December 2012
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24. OBLIGATION UNDER A FINANCE LEASE
During the year ended 31 December 2009, the
Group has leased certain of its motor vehicles under

24. BEBEMENERE
REBEE-ZTTNFT_A=1T—HI
FEA ARERBEREHNVHEER

finance leases. The lease term is 3 years. Interest BEFi5E - B A=F  BiEREMA
rates obligation under finance leases is fixed at 9> FEEEDRFAEES 4% o

8.84% per annum.

Present value

Minimum of minimum
lease payments lease payments
RERQNH BERNNNRZRE
2012 2011 2012 2011

—E--f -—T——& ZE--f —T——&

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TAL TET TAL

Amounts payable under

BEREEAENZ

finance lease #E
Within one year —FR - 81 - 77
In more than one year but not ~ —FJA B
more than two years TEBME - - - -
- 81 - 77
Less: Future finance charges B ARARBE - (4) - -
Present value of M#EEZRE
lease obligations - 77 - 77
Less: Amount due for settlement  J& : +=
with 12 months
(shown under
current liabilities) = (77)

Amount due for settlement +-AA%
after 12 months S 2 F0A

The Group's obligation under a finance lease is
secured by the lessor's charge over the leased assets
and is denominated in Hong Kong Dollars. The

REE zMERARENLBAZE
WEEMTIEEML LB TTEHE - B
BEHRNAEERFENBE -

obligation under a finance lease is discharged during

the year.
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CONVERTIBLE NOTES

(1)

Fulbond Convertible Note

On 6 August 2009, the Company entered
into a placing agreement (the “Fulbond CN
Placing Agreement”) with a placing agent
whereby the Company agreed, subject to
conditions (including the Stock Exchange's
and shareholders’ approval) issue zero coupon
convertible notes in a maximum aggregate
principal amount of HK$800,000,000 (the
“Fulbond Convertible Notes”) which can
be converted into ordinary shares of the
Company at a conversion price of HK$0.01
per share. The placing shall proceed in
two tranches namely, the First Tranche
Fulbond Convertible Notes and the Second
Tranche Fulbond Convertible Notes. Both
the First Tranche Fulbond Convertible Notes
(up to the aggregate principal amount
of HK$450,000,000) and the Second
Tranche Fulbond Convertible Notes (up
to the aggregate principal amount of
HK$350,000,000) fall under the placing and
are subject to the same terms and conditions
under the Fulbond CN Placing Agreement.

25.

CIE:Y ¢ ¢

(i)

B

ﬁﬂ?#&mﬁ
RZZEZNFNARHE AR
Tﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬂi—ﬁm%%
Z ([EBA LR EELKES W
-D Bt - ARAIREFFE
BCE TIEH (BIEEEEB P
&&%zmﬁ>& BOIARE
#8258 5 %£:800,000,000/8 7T 2
TgTﬁH ZE (R
IREE] - A& 5 K0.018
T EREER AR NG LB
IR o BLESEK O MILENE —
BB IR EE R E e
AR EBEIT - F—H#t18
AR ER (A RERE
450,000,000 7T) &% —#t
BHAUTRRER (K BE&
%350,000,0007% 7T) 9 A& B
EEH D WASEH
MR B A& 1 < ARG
NAGHFT#RR -
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25.

CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

(i

Fulbond Convertible Note (Continued)

The Fulbond Convertible Notes are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars with a
conversion period of 36 months from the
first issue date and can be converted into
ordinary shares of the Company at HK$0.01
per share, and may be adjusted upon
occurrence of adjustment events, which
include consolidation or sub-division of shares,
capitalisation of profits or reserves, capital
distributions in cash or specie, rights issues or
grant of options or warrants to subscribe for
new shares at a price which is less than 60%
of the market price, issue for cash of securities
which are convertible into or exchangeable
for or carry rights of subscription for new
shares or modification of rights of conversion
or exchange or subscription attached to
such securities such that the total effective
consideration per share initially receivable for
such securities is less than 80% of the market
price, issue shares for cash at a price per share
which is less than 80% of the market price,
issue shares for the acquisition of assets at a
total effective consideration per share which is
less than 80% of the market price, and will in
any event not be adjusted below the par value
of the share.
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CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

()

Fulbond Convertible Note (Continued)

The Fulbond Convertible Notes contain
three components, the liability component,
conversion option and issuer’s early
redemption option. The conversion option
gives the holder’s right at any time to convert
the Fulbond Convertible Notes into ordinary
shares of the Company. However since the
conversion option will be settled other than
by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash
or another financial asset for a fixed number
of the Company's own equity instruments,
the conversion option is accounted for as
a derivative liability. The early redemption
option gives the issuer the right to redeem
the note at par at any time before maturity.
Both conversion option derivative and early
redemption option are measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in profit
or loss.

The fair value of the liability component upon
the issuance of the note was calculated at
the present value of the principal amount.
The Fulbond Convertible Notes can only be
redeemed at par at the discretion of the
issuer in whole or in part anytime before the
maturity date. All tranches of the Fulbond
Convertible Notes matured on 28 December
2012 at aggregate principal amount of
HK$800,000,000.

25.
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CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

()

Fulbond Convertible Note (Continued)

On 21 June 2011, the Company obtained
approval from its shareholders to the proposed
reorganisation of the share capital of the
Company (the “Capital Re-organisation”),
which involves share consolidation every
10 existing shares of par value US$0.001
(equivalent to HK$0.01) into one consolidated
share of par value US$0.01 (equivalent to
HK$0.10) and capital reduction of the par
value of each issued consolidated share from
US$0.01 (equivalent to HK$0.10) to US$0.001
(equivalent to HK$0.01) by cancellation of
US$0.009 (equivalent to HK$0.09) of the paid
up capital of each issued consolidated share.
The original conversion price was adjusted
from HK$0.01 per share to HK$0.10 per share
as a result of Capital Re-organisation.

First Tranche Fulbond Convertible Notes

On 29 December 2009, the Company
partially issued the First Tranche Fulbond
Convertible Notes with the principal amount
of HK$200,000,000 (the “1st HK$200M
Fulbond CN”) to an independent third party.
The effective interest rate of the liability
component and discount rate used is 15.24%
which represents the cost of debt applicable
to the Company at the issue date.

On 14 January 2010, the Company issued the
remaining portion of the First Tranche Fulbond
Convertible Notes with principal amount
of HK$250,000,000 (the “2nd HK$250M
Fulbond CN”) to an independent third party.
The effective interest rate of the liability
component and discount rate used is 12.66%
which represents the cost of debt applicable
to the Company at the issue date.
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25.

CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

(i)

Fulbond Convertible Note (Continued)

First Tranche Fulbond Convertible Notes
(Continued)

On 12 January 2010 and 11 August 2010,
certain holders of the 1st HK$200M Fulbond
CN, gave notice to the Company to convert
the 1st HK$200M Fulbond CN in aggregate
principal amount of HK$140,000,000 to
ordinary shares of the Company.

On 5 May 2010, 18 May 2010 and 11
August 2010, certain holders of the 2nd
HK$250M Fulbond CN gave notice to the
Company to convert the 2nd HK$250M
Fulbond CN in aggregate principal amount
of HK$130,000,000 to ordinary shares of the
Company.

On 2 April 2012, holders of the First Tranche
Convertible Notes, have given notice to the
Company to convert remaining portion of 1st
HK$200M Fulbond CN and 2nd HK$250M
Fulbond CN in aggregate principal amount
of HK$60,000,000 and HK$120,000,000 to
ordinary shares of the Company respectively.
The carrying value of the liability component
and fair value of the embedded conversion
option and early redemption option of 1st
HK$200M Fulbond CN and 2nd HK$250M
Fulbond CN at the date of conversion
were approximately HK$88,482,000 and
HK$169,432,000 respectively, and gain on
fair value changes of HK$6,804,000 and
HK$13,608,000 were recognised in profit or
loss respectively.
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Hj - % — #£200,000,000/%
TRATHRERERERE
250,000,000/ JT f& F 7] #2 i
SEBED 2REENAEA
B ] AR B A K 1 T B (o] B A
Z NED BI# A88,482,000
78 7T }.169,432,000/8 7T © 7
18 25 BR A 9 Bl 7 526,804,000
77T 213,608,000/ 7T A F{E
BE) 2 W o
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25. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

()

Fulbond Convertible Note (Continued)

First Tranche Fulbond Convertible Notes
(Continued)

The fair values of the embedded conversion
option and the issuer’s early redemption
option were determined using binomial option

25.

TRREE (&)

() B\WHATRRRE (&)
FE—MEABTRREE (&)

NERRRHERETAZR
FEOHE A FERHE IR

AHREERAET - BEM

pricing model, the valuation was performed BERB(GEMEETERRE
by independent valuer, Asset Appraisal BERARET  REBBAE
Limited, and the inputs into the model at each RNZEIBEMT ¢
respective date were as follows:
(Date of
conversion)
(R BEH)
2.4.2012 31.12.2011
—E-—F —T——F
mA=H +=-A=+—H
Conversion price (g HK$0.10 HK$0.10
0.1058 T 0.10%8 7T
Share price IRE HK$0.142 HK$0.143
0.14278 T 0.143/87C
Expected volatility G 53.36% 50.27%
Remaining life | &4 5 HA 0.74 year 0.99 year
0.74%F 0.994F
Risk-free rate 48 B i 71| =R 0.130% 0.250%
Second Tranche Fulbond Convertible Notes ZHAE S A R

On 10 August 2010, the Company issued the
first portion of the Second Tranche Fulbond
Convertible Notes with principal amount
of HK$250,000,000 (the "3rd HK$250M
Fulbond CN"”) to an independent third party.
The effective interest rate of the liability
component and the discount rate used is
10.61% which represents the cost of debt
applicable to the Company at the issue date.
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CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

(i)

Fulbond Convertible Note (Continued)
Second Tranche Fulbond Convertible Notes
(Continued)

On 11 August 2010, certain holders of the
3rd HK$250M Fulbond CN, have given notice
to the Company to convert certain the 3rd
HK$250M Fulbond CN in aggregate principal
amount of HK$34,000,000 to ordinary shares
of the Company.

On 2 April 2012, certain holders of the 3rd
HK$250M Fulbond CN have given notice to
the Company to convert certain of the 3rd
HK$250M Fulbond CN in aggregate principal
amount of HK$126,000,000 to ordinary
shares of the Company. The carrying value
of the liability component and fair value of
the embedded conversion option and early
redemption option at the date of conversion
is approximately HK$177,342,000, and gain
on fair value changes of HK$14,288,000 was
recognised in profit or loss.

On 5 December 2012, the Company
exercise its call option to early redeem the
remaining portion of the 3rd HK$250M
Fulbond CN in aggregate principal amount
of HK$90,000,000. During the period up
to the date of redemption, a fair value gain
on embedded conversion option and early
redemption option of HK$56,468,000, was
recognised in profit and loss. The carrying
value of the liability component and fair value
of the conversion option derivative and early
redemption option of the remaining portion
of the 3rd HK$250M Fulbond CN in aggregate
at the date of redemption is approximately
HK$86,838,000, giving rise to a loss on early
redemption of HK$3,162,000 recognised in
profit or loss in the current period.

25.

TRRERE (F)

()

B

ERTRRER ()
—WEREREER (B)

RZE—ZFNA+—H %
= #£250,000,000% 7T & ilKT
BEREBIFBEEARAR

BHBM & M@$é%57%
34,000,000/ L2 H T8 =4t
250,000,000 T 48 FB A #2 i
EEARNDRZEBR

RZE——FWA=-H' %
= #£250,000,0005% 7T 18 B A]
BREBCETHEAER
RAREHBRA  BHRAS
%1126,000,000/8 7t 2 58 = #it
250,000,0007% 7t 18 3B 7] #2 f%
EEZATHHAREART LR
B RIARRBE - BEMHZ
EEETEL\A&WEEWH&HE%&
REERBAE A FES K
#5177,342,0008 ¢ ° B R
BExEERATEZHKE
14,288,000/ 7T °

R-ZTE——F+-_AAHB " K
ARITHEEHRERERACES
90,000,000 LR £ 1B @ &
= #£250,000,000% 7T t8 FB a]
BREBBZBTHD - BER
[B1H 8 (FHARS - (A B AR AR ER
ERIRFERHRE L A FEK
#:56,468,0007% ;T B K B &=
NEER - RERBE  F=#
250,000,000 7T 48 FB A #2 i%
EBR# T cBEHXD 2K
E{E AR AT BN AE T A
RiZRRERSE s A FEAH
#£#86,838,000/8 7T + EE R
AHEBRERANERIERELD
fE5483,162,000/8 7T °
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25. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued) 25. ABRREE (&)
Fulbond Convertible Note (Continued) (i) TEHIRRERE (£)
Second Tranche Fulbond Convertible Notes CHAE AT E R ()
(Continued)
The remaining unissued tranche of Fulbond # T100,000,000/% 7T 2 7K #&
Convertible Notes of HK$100,000,000 expired TR BB AR ERE R
in October 2010. N A ELE
The fair values of the embedded conversion NEPHRRIEREITAZE
option and the issuer’s early redemption FHELHE A FEDREA
option were determined using binomial option “THEHAHREERAET B
pricing model, respectively, the valuation was B EHELGERMEETE
performed by independent valuer, Assets BEEARAAET  REBEH
Appraisal Limited and the inputs into the Hm AR 28BN T -
model at each respective date were as follows:
(Date of (Date of
redemption)  conversion)
(BEEH) (BRAH)
5.12.2012 2.4.2012 31.12.2011
~B--fF —B--f —TF
+ZAEH WA=R t—A=+—H
Conversion price B E HK$0.100 HK$0.100 HK$0.100
0.10078 7T 0.1007& 7T 0.100/87T
Share price RE HKS$0.124 HK$0.142 HK$0.143
0.12478 T 0.14278 T 0.143% 7T
Expected volatility TR IR 29.54% 53.36% 50.27%
Remaining life FrEH - 0.74 year 0.99 year
- 0.74%F 0.99%F
Risk-free rate Ei NP 0.047% 0.130% 0.250%
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25.

CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

(i)

2012 CN Convertible Note

On 16 August 2012, the Company entered
into a placing agreement (as supplement and
amended by a side letter dated 27 August
2012) (the 2012 CN Placing Agreement”)
with a placing agent whereby the Company
agreed, subject to conditions (including the
Stock Exchange’s and shareholders’ approval)
issue zero coupon convertible notes in a
maximum aggregate principal amount of
HK$120,000,000 (the 2012 CN Convertible
Notes"”). The placing can be completed by
a maximum of four tranches provided that
the aggregate principal amount of the 2012
CN Convertible Notes to be issued by the
Company for each partial completion shall not
be less than HK$30,000,000. The tranches fall
under placing are subject to the same terms
and conditions under the 2012 CN Placing
Agreement.

The 2012 CN Convertible Notes are
denominated in Hong Kong dollars with a
conversion period of 36 months from the
first issue date and can be converted into
ordinary shares of the Company at HK$0.12
per ordinary share, and may be adjusted
upon occurrence of adjustment events, which
include consolidation or sub-division of shares,
capitalisation of profits or reserves, capital
distributions, issue for cash of securities which
are convertible into or exchangeable for or
carry rights of subscription for new shares
or modification of rights of conversion or
exchange or subscription attached to such
securities that the total effective consideration
per share which is less than 80% of the
market price, issues shares for cash at a price
per share which is less than 80% of the
market price, issues shares for the acquisition
of assets at a total effective consideration per
share which is less than 80% of the market
price, and will in any event not be adjusted
below the par value of the share.

25.
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(ii)

20127 R E R

RZE——FNA+B K
AEHEEERE Y —HES
W (KABA-ZZE——FN
RZ++EHB 2 &z &E
1) ([2012R[ IR BB AL & 173
&) B ARERERF
ERETHRE (BREIEER
Fr IR 2 #Ho k) 18 - BT
% 42 %E £ %120,000,0007% 7T
ZEBE MR ERE (120127
BREE]) RBEAITHZ
MHLR TR - AR BIBE R
B > SEA T A% T 31722012
MR EEARSBEIEER
30,000,000/ 7T - A EE T A
FTAZEH#H IR 7AER20127]
AR EIR AL S ek 2 ME R
NAGHFFTARBR ©

20127] 2 jg B8], DA B T &
B BREAERETHER
513618 A It 7] LAERR0. 1278 7T
EMK AR R @R - AJEE
TETEHRELDRARE - A
BIEROEM  ROFHE - &
MekFEBEENME EXDIK -
RERMBITAEBRIIRE
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25. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued) 25. ABRREE (&)
(ii) 2012 CN Convertible Note (Continued) (i) 20127TERREE (&)

The 2012 CN Convertible Notes contain 20127 IR ZHR B4 = [ 2
three components, the liability component, 7 B EHS - AR
conversion option and issuer’s early NEBEITARBERHE 7]
redemption option. The conversion option BmRBER THE ABRS
gives the holder’s right at any time to convert 202F] MR EBREBR B AR
the 2012 CN Convertible Notes into ordinary Bl EBAR 2R - R B
shares of the Company. However since the 2012F IR =18 Jh LA B JT At
2012 CN Convertible Notes are denominated B MARRZINETEERA
in HK$ and the functional currency of the E# - AR B R E BT
Company is RMB, the conversion option will IR Z—EUBEER SR
be settled other than by the exchange of a RRARIAGEEHE 2R T
fixed amount of cash or another financial BNz HHEE - AT AR A
asset for a fixed number of the Company’s BARRITERE - IZAIEE
own equity instruments, the conversion option HARERR T 21T AB RN EA
is accounted for as a derivative liability. The AIBERFIZ E BB R EE - A/
early redemption option gives the issuer the MREARESTE T A R IZ A& B HA
right to redeem the note at par at any time B ATEFE - ATER
before maturity. Both conversion option FRIBRER ©

derivative and early redemption option are
measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised profit and loss.

The fair value of the liability component upon RETERRE BEBH 2
the issuance of the note was calculated at ANTFBEEASERERE -
the present value of the principal amount. 20127 # IR F 15 1% 7] 7R B 23
The 2012 CN Convertible Notes can only BRIERBZEITANSEEE
be redeemed at par at the discretion of the B 2 Es i Ri& o

issuer in whole or in part anytime before the
maturity date.

All tranches of the 2012 CN Convertible Notes 2 E2012 7 B EBEEB L =
will mature on 28 November 2015. E—-—hRF+—A=-+N\BE
/HH o
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25.

CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

(i)

2012 CN Convertible Note (Continued)

The 2012 CN Convertible Notes with principal
amount of HK$120,000,000 was issued on 29
November 2012 which can be converted into
ordinary shares of the Company at HK$0.12
per share. The aggregate fair value of the
2012 CN Convertible Notes at 29 November
2012 is approximately HK$127,871,000,
representing a loss in fair value on initial
recognition of HK$7,871,000 recognised in
the profit and loss. The effective interest rate
of 23.52% was used to determine the fair
value of the liability component on initial
recognition.

The aggregate principal amount under the
2012 CN Convertible Notes outstanding at
31 December 2012 amount to HK$120,000,000
and the carrying amount of the liability
components and the fair values of the
embedded conversion option and early
redemption option in aggregate approximately
HK$61,202,000 and HK$73,492,000,
respectively. During the year ended 31
December 2012, an aggregate fair value loss
on embedded conversion option and early
redemption option of HK$5,594,000 in respect
of the outstanding 2012 CN Convertible Notes
was recognised in the profit and loss.

25.

idated Financial Statements

TRREE (&)

(ii)

20127 IR EHE ()
RZE——F+—A=+NH
¥ 177N £ %8 4120,000,000/%8
TLZ2012] MR B - %2 F
ZEBRAIEEFR12B TEH B
ABARNBME®EEK RZT—
—E+—A=+ N8 2012
MR EBE B RATFERY
127,871,000/8 7t * HH & R ¥l
TR A FEEET,871,000
BT DR EBERANER &
FERABEHEAER A X
2352%EEaERH 2 A F
& -

RZE——F+=_A=+—
BiEARITHE 220127 B 2
B2 K& ¥ % /4&120,000,000
B BEBLSCEEE
FABAHBRBEELRER
BEOHEZAFESESD
Al #) /&61,202,0008 7T &
73,492,000 L HE T
——F®+-_A=+—HItHF
B HMARITE 220127] #i&
EBRCIABEARREE KRR
FEONSE 2 BATEEISE
5,594,000/ ;T E N 1B @ AR T8
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25. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)
(ii) 2012 CN Convertible Note (Continued)

The fair values of the embedded conversion
option and the issuer’s early redemption
option were determined using binomial option
pricing model, the valuation was performed
by independent valuer, Asset Appraisal
Limited, and the inputs into the model at each
respective date were as follow:

25.

TRRREE (&)

(ii)

20127 IR EHE ()

REAT R R EITAZIR
REDHEs A FERAZE
AREETERRET 581G
B M B ERE E T EEE R
ERARET REBEAE
AZEEAT -

31.12.2012 29.11.2012
—E——fF —E—_fF
+=A=+—H +—A=+hH

Conversion price BB
Share price IR B
Expected volatility TR AR 1R
Remaining life | & F HA
Risk-free rate 2 25, B ) 22
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HK$0.120 HK$0.120
0.1208 T 0.12058 T
HK$0.134 HK$0.132
0.1348 T 0.1328 7T
48.91% 49.38%
2.92%F 3%
0.120% 0.164%



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e HRARMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BEr—F——F+_A=+—HIFEF

25. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued) 25. ABRREE (&)
(ii) 2012 CN Convertible Note (Continued) (i) 20127TERREE (&)
The movements of the components of First RREFERN F—#EREZ
and Second Tranche Fulbond Convertible HaA iR HHn e
Notes during both years are set out below: YT
Principal Liability ~ Embedded
amount  component derivatives Total
Ve aEHny NETETIA @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TR TR TR

At 1 January 2011 R_E—F

—A—A 396,000 307,603 484,425 792,028
Change in fair value ~FEEE - - (235,964) (235,964)
Interest charged FBFS - 39,733 - 39,733
At 31 December 2011 RZE——%

+-A=+—H 396,000 347,336 248,461 595,797
Change in fair value AFEEE - - (91,168) (91,168)
Interest charged MEFX - 17,465 - 17,465
Converted during the year £ i (306,0000  (277,963)  (157,293)  (435,256)
Redeemed during the year EREE (90,000) (86,838) - (86,838)
At 31 December 2012 RZB——%

+ZA=+—H - - - -
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25. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued) 25. ABRREE (&)
(ii) 2012 CN Convertible Note (Continued) (i) 2012WBBRE (&)
The movements of the components of 2012 FR2012FT R F IR 2 & 2
CN Convertible Notes during the year are set DEEHFAT -
out below:
Principal Liability ~ Embedded
amount  component derivatives Total
KeH BEHH RENMETIR @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET TAT TAT TAT

1 January 2011 RZE——F
_H_E _ — — -
Issued during the year ERBT 120,000 59,973 67,898 127,871
Change in fair value ATEZE - - 5,594 5,594
Interest charged FIERY - 1,229 - 1,229
At 31 December 2012 RZE——F
+ZA=1+—8H 120,000 61,202 73,492 134,694
Analysed for reporting purpose as: EREBRFEZoMTIT ¢
2012 2011
= —F——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Current liabilities TEARE - 595,797
Non-current liabilities ERBAER 134,694 -
134,694 595,797
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26. OTHER BORROWINGS HthE&

2012 2011
—E--F —E2——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTExT FET

Unsecured three-year loan notes EEF=FH
(note a) (Htita) - 1,523
Other borrowing (note b) HmEE (#i2b) 17,191 -
17,191 1,523

Notes:

According to the corporate restructuring of the
Company and its subsidiaries which was completed
on 30 March 2001, the creditors of the Group
received three-year loan notes from the Company
with an aggregate face value of HK$34,100,000
which carry fixed interest at a rate of 7% per
annum. The three-year loan notes are repayable in
six equal semi-annual instalments and fully repaid
in the current year.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the
Group obtained a loan of amount RMB14,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$17,191,000) from
Xi‘an Xingchuang Estate Limited ("FZEEIBE%£E
[RAA]") (“Xi'an Xingchuang”) and its shareholder,
being independent third parties not connected to
the Group. The proceeds from the borrowings is
used for general operation for the development
projects. The amount is unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand. Subsequent to end of the
reporting period, Xi'an Xingchuang acquired 40%
equity interest from the non-controlling shareholder
of Xi‘an Yuansheng Enterprises Limited, a non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, and the
Group has repaid RMB7,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$8,596,000) to Xi‘an Xingchuang.

HiaE -

(@ BREXARAREWBARERZ=
TE-F=-A=1tHRKZAQA
BH AEBECZERABRAEAR
7] Y B 42 T (& £34,100,000/%8 7T
Z-FHERER - —FHER
EEREBRI%ABNRTEE
—RZEROHNREA D NH
EHE EREAFERHEE -

by HE-FE—=-—F+-A=+—H
IEFE  AEEgHAAEEHRE
BECBYE = ATEREE
BRAR ([AZE8]) RER
REBE R AR 14,000,000
7t (FBER#17,191,000/ T) °
BEMBSRENHERBAZER Z
—MEE - ZNEAELRE . %
BENBEREREERE RREPLE
Rt ML ERBETLRRBEE
BRAF (KRAIZEREHE
RNA)) ZIEERRAE R U BEA0% 1
HoMAEEERALZEAEE
A R #7,000,0007T (48 & R &
8,596,000/8 7T ) °
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26. OTHER BORROWINGS (Continued) 26. HEE (&
Included in the borrowings are the following %,\&%TWLA*HF%%.E %Zlﬂﬁﬁ
amounts denominated in currencies other than the BEUINZ BB EE 22
functional currency of the group entities to which
they relate:
2012 2011
— —T——%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Hong Kong Dollars BT - 1,523
27. SHARE CAPITAL 27. B
Number of shares Amount in USS As presented
Ok € 78 (%7 &35
2012 2011 2012 201 2012 2011
ZE-CF “5—-% ZB-Zf -%—-% CB-Zf —T--%&
Us$'000 Us$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
S TEn THR i
Ordinary share of US$0.001 each ~ SREE0.001%T
LERR
Authorised: T
At 1 January 2011, i3
31 December --B:
2011 and 2012 I
ZE-TETCR
=+—H 100,000,000,000  100,000,000,000 100,000 100,000 775,000 775,000
Issues and fully paid BETRAR
At beginning of the year REA] 4,564,293,000 45,642,927 ,432 4,564 45,643 35,465 354,722
Issue of shares upon conversion of  EA AR EER
convertible notes %iikin 3,060,000,000 - 3,060 - 23,758 -
Issue of share upon exercise of R R RIER
share options (note a) ¥R (Hita) - 2,568 - - - -
Adjustment on Capital RAEh 8%
Re-organisation (notes b and ¢) (BitbKc) (5,718,219,750)  (41,078,637,000) (5,718) (41,079) (44,328)  (319.257)
At end of the year RER 1,906,073,250  4,564,293,000 1,906 4,564 14,895 35,465
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27. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)
Notes:

(a) 2,568 share options granted to executives and
employees were exercised on 16 June 2011 at an
exercise price of HK$0.41.

(b) Pursuant to special resolution passed by the
shareholders in the special general meeting
on 21 June 2011, the Company approved the
following capital re-organisation: (i) Consolidated
of every 10 existing shares of US$0.001 each in
the issued share capital of the Company into one
consolidated share of par value US$0.01 (“Share
Consolidation”); (ii) Upon the share consolidated
become effective, the par value of each issued
consolidated share is reduced from US$0.01
to US$0.001 by cancellation of US$0.009 of
the paid-up capital of each issued consolidated
share (“Capital Reduction”); and (iii) Upon Share
Consolidation and the Capital Reduction becoming
effective, the entire amount of the share premium
account is cancelled. The capital re-organisation
was in effect from 22 June 2011.

(0) Pursuant to special resolution passed by the
shareholders in the special general meeting on
11 October 2012, the Company approved the
following capital re-organisation: (i) Consolidation
of every 4 existing shares of US$0.001 each in
the issued share capital of the Company into one
consolidated share of par value US$0.004 (“Share
Consolidation”); (ii) Upon the Share Consolidation
becoming effective, the par value of each issued
consolidated share is reduced from US$0.004
to US$0.001 by cancellation of US$0.003 of
the paid-up capital of each issued consolidated
share (“Capital Reduction”); and (iii) Upon Share
Consolidation and the Capital Reduction becoming
effective, the entire amount of the share premium
account is cancelled. The capital re-organisation
was in effect from 12 October 2012.

27.
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28.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

On 19 November 2001, a share option scheme (the
“Old Scheme”) was adopted, whereby the Board
of Directors (the “Board”) may, at its absolute
discretion, grant options to any executive or non-
executive directors of the Group, any executives and
employees of the Group and any other persons who,
in the sole discretion of the Board, have contributed
or will contribute to the Group to subscribe for
shares in the Company.

The Old Scheme expired on 18 November 2011 and
the outstanding share options granted under the
Old Scheme on 14 July 2008 were also lapsed on
13 July 2011.

A new share option scheme (the “New Scheme”)
was adopted by the Company on 25 May 2012.
Pursuant to the New Scheme, the Board may, at
their discretion, grant options to any directors,
executives, employees and any other persons who
have contributed or will contribute to the Group
to subscribe for shares in the Company at a price
determined by the directors and not less than the
highest of:

(i) The closing price of the shares of the
Company as stated in the daily quotation
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the
date of grant of the options;

(i)  The average closing price of the shares of
the Company as stated in the daily quotation
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the
five business days immediately preceding the
date of grant of the options; and

(iii)  The nominal value of the shares of the
Company on the date of grant.
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BE—F——F+-_A=+—HIFE
28. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (Continued)

The total number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the New Scheme is
not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any point in time, without prior
approval from the Company’s shareholders. The
number of shares issued and to be issued in respect
of which options granted and may be granted to
any individual in any one year is not permitted to
exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at
any point in time, without prior approval from the
Company’s shareholders.

Options granted must be taken up within 28 days
of that date of grant, upon payment of HK$1 in
aggregate as consideration for the options granted.
Vesting periods are determined by the Board on
each grant date. Options are lapsed if the employee
leaves the Group before the option vest.

No additional option was granted during the years
ended 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2012.
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29. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 29. REHERIE
The Group as lessee AEBEREBEA
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had R EERET - NEBERBAE
outstanding commitment of future minimum lease FZ A REGERON T EE
payments under non-cancellable operating leases in ARRFIEHSAELT -
respect of office premises which fall due as follows:
2012 2011
—E-CF —E——%
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHTT
Within one year —F R 1,102 1,809
In the second to fifth year inclusive BE_FEERF
(EEMEBEEN) - 1,055
1,102 2,864
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable KERENREAEERESETHA
by the Group for certain of its office premises. EMEIENEE o KERE - HE
Leases are negotiated for lease term of 1 to 2 years. BIR1ZE24F o
30. CAPITAL COMMITMENT 30. EXEE
2012 2011
—E-—F —T——%F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FHET
Capital expenditure in respect of EEESERSA
properties under development MBmEPREEZ
contracted for but not provided in BRPYE EAREE
the consolidated financial statements 289,212 84,365
31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 31. FBREALXRS

The key management personnel are the directors of
the Company. The details of their remunerations are
set out in note 14.

Other than the transactions and balances with
related parties disclosed in notes 14 and 23, the
Group has no other significant transactions and
balances with related parties.
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32. INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT OF 32.
FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY
Information about the statement of financial

BEAXDAMBRRER 2ER

B RN R AR RS S R 2 B

position of the Company at the end of the reporting Mz ERAT -
period includes:
2012 2011
—EB-—F —FT—%
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FET
Non-current asset ERBEE
Investment in subsidiaries KRB AR ZIRE S -
Current assets MENEE
Other receivables and prepayments b pE kI K
T RIE 630 523
Bank balances and cash RITEHR KRS 1,967 6,794
2,597 7,317
Current liabilities mEaE
Other payables H At &~ IR 7,095 12,902
Convertible notes AR ER - 595,797
Other borrowings HER = 1,523
7,095 610,222
Net current assets (liabilities) mEEE (AE) F5E (4,498) (602,905)
Non-current liability ERBEE
Convertible notes AIRRR iR 134,694 -
(139,192) (602,905)
Capital and reserve B K
Share capital (see note 27) WA (BHRfat27) 14,895 35,465
Reserves fEE (154,087) (638,370)
(139,192) (602,905)
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HEr—ZF——

33.

Ft-_A=1—HIFE

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

33. ARQTFzEHHE

Share Exchange
Share option  translation  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
BiDEE BRERE 5% ZRER G
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT FERT TAT FERT TAT
At 1 January 2011 RZE——F
—H—H 1,189,053 3,306 (18,416)  (2,343,931)  (1,169,988)
Exchange difference arising on NICYIE G Y
translation of function currency  2HIEHBEEAL
to presentation currency EHER - - 8,947 - 8,947
Profit for the year AEFHT - - - 206,720 206,720
Total comprehensive income AEERH
for the year DN - - 8,947 206,720 215,667
Reduction of share capital RARAEAM
upon capital reorganisation Bl AR (1,189,053) - - 1,508,310 319,257
Lapsed of share option RIRERM - (3,306) - - (3,306)
At 31 December 2011 RZZ——4F
+-A=1+—-H = = (9,469) (628,901) (638,370)
Exchange difference arising on RTENREE A
translation of function currency 2HEBEES
to presentation currency LERER - - 362 - 362
Profit for the year RERRT - - - 28,095 28,095
Total comprehensive income AEERAE
for the year DN - - 362 28,095 28,457
Issue of shares upon conversion  EHRAARER
of convertible notes B 21T 411,498 - - - 411,498
Reduction of share capital upon ~ ERAZ4E
capital reorganisation ElEwN (411,498) - - 455,826 44,328
At 31 December 2012 AR e
gme 3l s — = = - (9,107) (144,980 (154,087)
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BE_F——FFt-_H=+—HILFF
34. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 3. FEMMBARIFE
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at RZE——F+A=+—HRZ=ZZ

31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011 are as ——F+_A=+—H ' AXRAEE

follows: MEBARZFBRT -
Place of Percentage of issued Issued and fully
incorporation/ Place of share capital/registered paid capital/
Name of subsidiary registration operation capital held registered capital  Principal activities
freRaRE/ ERAR
) INCER HMAY/EMeE  EE4E &AL BRRE/ SMER  TEER
2012 2011
ZE-Zf —“E—-%
% %
Able Force Investments Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong 100 100 HKS1  Investment in securities
HRREBRAT 3 B BT EHFRE
Allywing Investments Limited British Virgin Islands ~ Hong Kong 100 100 US$T  Investment holding
RARERRAR ABRAEE B 1T REER
Fulbond Business Services Limited*  Hong Kong Hong Kong - 100 HK$2  Provision of management
RACXREERAT B B BT senvices
RUERRS
Fulbond Corporate Hong Kong Hong Kong 100 100 Ordinary  Provision of management
Management Limited &k Bk HK$10,000  services
RACEERERAT BERI0,000AT  REEERK
Fulbond Investments Limited British Virgin Islands ~ Hong Kong 100 100 US$T  Investment holding
RERAEE (30 1ZT REER
Senbond Building Materials Limited®  Hong Kong Hong Kong - 100 Ordinary HK$200  Inactive
RARMERAA (3 3% and deferred* ~ EEEH
HK$10,000
LER00ETR
ER-HK*10,0008T
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34. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 34. XEWEBATFEE (&)

(Continued)
Place of Percentage of issued Issued and fully
incorporation/ Place of share capital/registered paid capital/
Name of subsidiary registration operation capital held registered capital  Principal activities
fiRERIRE/ BETR
WEARAR MR/ RRmE  EERY AMEREAL BERA/2MER  IZER
2012 201
Z%-fF “F-%
% %
Ta Fu Strategic Investment Limited*  British Virgin Islands ~ Hong Kong - 100 US$10,000  Investment holding
ABRAES B 1000050 RERRK
Xi'an Yuansheng PRC PRC 60 60 RMB50,000,000  Property development
Enterprises Limited** i HE ARE50,000000m  WERE
RZEEEXARAF
* The deferred shares are non-voting and are not * BERD I TH AR E®R B
entitled to participate in the distribution of profits REMBREEHEESZ S
in any financial year and are only entitled to a wmAH DR WEATAESBSBEAR
return of capital on liquidation when the net assets AR TREZCEEFEBEY
of the relevant company available for distribution 100,000,000,000,000,000/% JT K
are in excess of HK$100,000,000,000,000,000. ZHERBEZERER -
**  The Company is a sino-foreign equity joint venture. ** o ZRRBARAFINGERE -
# Disposed during the year ended 31 December # RBE_ZE—=—F+=_A=+—
2012. HIEFEHE -
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company %%éwﬁ%  ERFTAIARATIFE AT
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally BYERFEES  SERKAEE
affected the results of the year or constituted a ﬁ%@ﬁ%j{ﬁﬁn BEERE - RHE
substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. HEwHBARFBEEs|IRERBRIT
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the o

opinion of the directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities RS HAE RGeS FEAERERE - &
outstanding at the end of the reporting period or at B A EEAREEERE

any time during the year.
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35.

EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

Subsequent to 31 December 2012, Fair Power
Capital Limited, a subsidiary company of the
Company, entered into an agreement with Ms.
He Guomian (“Ms. He"),
party, to dispose all of its entire interests in Max
Plan Investments Limited (“Max Plan”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Max Plan Group”). Ms. He has
agreed to acquire the sale shares, which represents
the entire issued share capital of Max Plan and the
shareholders’ loan at a total cash consideration of
US$850,000 (approximately HK$6,630,000). The
disposal was completed on 26 March 2013. Upon
the disposal of the Max Plan Group, all the assets
and liabilities of the Max Plan Group would no
longer be consolidated with effect from 26 March
2013. At the date of this financial statements, the
directors of the Company are still in process of
quantifying the financial impact of the disposal to
the Group.

an independent third
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RESULTS iy
For the year ended 31 December
BE+t-A=1t-HLEE
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
“E-Cf —T-f C—T-TF _TTNF _TI)\fF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TET AT THT TET
Turnover EE ] 250 125 119,552 415,873 281,387
Profit (loss) before taxation BEAER (B5R) 28,242 30,656 (785,047) (426,211) (244,528)
Taxation 18 - - - 6,874 (5,441)
Profit (loss) for the year KEERH (BR) 28,242 30,656 (785,047) (419,337) (249,969)
Attributable to: FE( IR -
Owners of the Company KARRE 32,659 60,886 (783,381) (417,547) (226,099)
Non-controlling interests JEIER RS (4,417) (30,230) (1,666) (1,790) (23,870)
28,242 30,656 (785,047) (419,337) (249,969)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
At 31 December
R+=RA=t+-8
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
~B--f T ZT-FF ZITNF ZTT)\%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET AT TET TET
Total assets BEE 698,348 692,655 920,533 622,252 511,988
Total liabilities BaR (220,877) (685,986) (968,964)  (1,084,041) (602,500)
Net assets (liabilities) BEFE (8F) 477,471 6,669 (48,431) (461,789) (90,512)
Attributable to: FEEER D -
Owners of the Company ARAIRE 258,870 (208,684) (270,227) (465,539) (99,797)
Non-controlling interests FERR R 218,601 215,353 221,796 3,750 9,285
477,471 6,669 (48,431) (461,789) (90,512)
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